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I. DEPARTMENT GENERAL INFORMATION
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2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

AGSA Auditor General of South Africa

AO Accounting Officer

APP Annual Performance Plan

BBBEE Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment
CchDw Community Development Worker

CFO Chief Financial Officer

DHS Department of Human Settlements

DMPT District Municipal Planning Tribunal

DPME Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation

DRDLR  Department of Rural Development and Land Reform
EPWP Expanded Public Works Programme

EU European Union

FMCMM  Financial Management Capability Maturity Model

FMPPI Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information
GIAMA  Government Immovable Asset Management Act

HDI Historically Disadvantaged Individuals

HOA Home Owners Allowance

HOD Head of Department

HSDG Human Settlements Development Grant

HR Human Resources

HSS Human Settlements System

LGMIM  Local Government Management Improvement Model
LOGIS Local Government Information System

MBA Master’s in Business Administration

MBL Master's in Business Leadership

MEC Member of Executive Council

MPAT Management Performance Assessment Tool

MPCV Municipal Performance, Co-ordination and Valuations
MPRA Municipal Property Rates Act

MSA Municipal Systems Act

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework
MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

MTSF Medium Term Strategic Framework
NPA National Prosecuting Authority

NYDA National Youth Development Agency
OHS Occupational Health and Safety

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PHTL Provincial House of Traditional Leaders
PMDC Provincial Disaster Management Centre

PPPFA Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (5/2000)
PSCBC  Public Service Coordinating Bargaining Council

RDP Reconstruction and Development Programme
SASSA  South African Social Security Agency

SCM Supply Chain Management

SDIP Service Delivery Improvement Plan

SITA State Information Technology Agency

SLP Social Labour Plan

SMME Small Medium and Micro Enterprises

SO Strategic Objective

SOl Strategic Objective Indicator

SP Strategic Plan

TR Treasury Regulations
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FOREWORD BY THE MEC

Section 26 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (Act 108 of 1996) states
“Everyone has a right to have access to adequate housing”. Chapter Eight (8) of the
National Development Plan 2030 bears a dream of “Transforming human settlement and
the national space economy”. It also aims to ensure the achievement of “decent standard
of living” for all South Africans by 2030 by way of providing housing, electricity and

sanitation as the core elements.

However, for descent standard of living to be achieved, the NDP proposes “A reduction
in the number of people who live in households with a monthly income below R419 per
person from 39 percent to zero”, as one of its objectives. Provision of housing is very
pertinent because it provides shelter, a place to eat, sleep, relax and raise a family.

Housing also enables people to enjoy physical and mental health and live in a safe place
in peace and dignity. However, housing remains inseparable from other rights such as
sanitation and water. Furthermore, housing is also linked to broader developments in the economy, labour markets,
migration, etc., which affect access to housing. Failure to realize these rights and provide socio-economic goods and
amenities in turn compromise the progressive realization of the right to housing.

In a bid towards achieving this Constitutional instruction and NDP 2030 objectives, we realized that 2019/2020 was a
watershed year as we reflect on our planned objectives, re-evaluate our priorities, ways of working, and mobilized new
responses towards access to service delivery challenges.

During 2019/2020, we set out to change and improve the lives of our people within their communities by ensuring the
development of quality houses, provision of services, hand-over of title deeds, driving efficient, democratic and
sustainable municipalities with improved audit outcomes, as well as render support to traditional leadership institution.
We mobilized and utilized scarce resources at our disposal.

Through our efforts we managed to deliver 601 houses, registered | 575 title deeds and provided services (water and
sanitation) to 979 erven. In addition, consistent with our vision to ensure that municipalities (as the coalface of service
delivery) are efficient, capable of ensuring a deepening participatory democracy, and improving their audit outcomes,
accountability and good governance, we supported and guided municipalities in collaboration with sector departments
and private sector as partners. Furthermore, we also continued to give support to the institution of traditional leadership
and rural communities. In this regard, we endeavoured to support any developments that arose from new legislation.

Our experiences during 2019/2020 taught us valuable lessons of working with limited resources, interacting with
communities that continue to look upon us and local government for services, and our sector stakeholders and partners,
who continuously support our efforts. Furthermore, we learned to content ourselves with service delivery demands in
our constant engagements with communities.

In ensuring harmony between our actions and inputs, we implemented our Annual Performance Plan towards realizing
strategic objectives and planned targets as part of our mandate. Importantly, we made strides as we build towards
realizing Chapter 13 of the NDP 2030, which is “Building a capable and developmental state”, by encouraging strong
leadership, collaboration and partnership within municipalities and traditional communities in our province.

However, we realized that this vision is not realizable without supporting and guiding municipalities to work towards
embracing good governance principles, accountable and participatory democracy, which are ingredients for improved
audit outcome and service delivery.

The outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic during the last quarter of 2019/2020 tested our disaster management system
and readiness programme. Our response was magnanimous as we repositioned our plans and mobilized our resources
towards combating the pandemic while simultaneously spreading awareness and making information available to our
fents. In this regard, we have as the delivery department, participated and led by example, in the initiatives
vernment towards reducing the surge of the pandemic. Our resolve to fight this scourge continues

MEC ofithe artment of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs
July 2020
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REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

Overview of the operations of the Department

The Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements & Traditional
Affairs is required to implement and coordinate interventions aimed at achieving
an efficient, effective and development-oriented state, as envisioned in the
National Development Plan (NDP) 2030 through achievement of good
governance; integrated and sustainable human settlements; as well as accountable,
responsive and participatory democracy within 31 municipalities of the province.
This includes supporting and promoting traditional leadership institutions,
traditions, customs and culture, through implementing regulations of Section 8|
and a co-ordinated District Development Model.

The Department strives to achieve sustainable human settlements and improved
quality of household life that will culminate in the establishment of viable, socially
and economically integrated communities that are located in areas that allow
convenient access to economic opportunities as well as health, educational and social amenities.

It does so by:

+ upgrading informal settlements through the provisioning of bulk services to communities (water & sanitation);

 restoring dignity of citizens by handing over title deeds and transferring houses to beneficiaries and allowing
them access to economic opportunities (renting out houses, build back-rooms and use houses as guarantees
to secure bank loans);

« giving houses to military veterans;

+ provisioning of low and medium cost houses to low income earners through the Social and Rental Housing
Programme;

s provisioning of houses to the gap market through the Finance-Linked Individual Subsidy Programme (FLISP);

« rendering town planning services; and

« the construction of top structures.

The Department remains committed to rendering support and guiding the 3| municipalities of the Northern Cape
towards achieving sound governance structures, improved audit outcomes, efficient and effective delivery of
services, as well as deepening participatory democracy within communities. Phokwane Local Municipality was put
under Section |39 administration and that had a negative impact on the Department’s budget as well as service
delivery. The amount of £R5.6 million had to be sourced from Programme 3's budget and this had a knock-on
effect on the Programme’s performance as budget re-prioritisation had to be done.

In as far as Traditional Affairs is concerned, the Department continues to give support to traditional leadership
institutions as a whole. In pursuance of preservation and promotion of traditions, customs and culture within the
recognized traditional communities, the Department provides financial, legal and human capital support.

Administration

The Department operates within the approved organizational structure of 2008, despite new posts having been
created and filled. To ameliorate this challenge, the Department has developed a draft organizational structure,
which was submitted to the Office of the Premier for input. A business case study was conducted in this regard
as a requirement, and consultation with the Department of Public Service and Administration is on course. A letter
was written to the CFO requesting the Assurance letter for proposed posts ensure that funds are available for
the proposed posts. The DPSA and Office of the Premier need the Assurance Letter as part of evidence for
proposed structure to be approved.

Although the Department’s budget has seen a decline over the years, the Department has made serious strides in
the areas of MPAT, human resource plan, management of diversity, employee health and wellness, as well as skills
development and capacity building. So far, the Department has been meeting reporting compliance requirements
in the areas of annual performance plans, performance monitoring and evaluation of internal service delivery
projects. The Auditor-General's 2018/19 report has shown improvement on both financial and non-financial
information. Programme 2 received an unqualified opinion on performance information for the 2™ consecutive

year.
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The administration is responsible for management practices based on norms and standards, as well as local and
international best practice models. The departmental performance is measured by the quantity and quality of the
management and administrative practices as well as performance against service delivery to citizens.

Ongoing research and analysis within administration is therefore required to assist decision making by measuring
the effectiveness and efficiency of policies, plans, operations and practices through evidence based methods in
order to benchmark and baseline organizational functionality and provide alternative delivery models.

The National Development Plan 2030 asserts that improved Human Resource capacity in departments is critical
for the effective implementation of the steps identified above as well as the broader professionalism of individual
departments. The Department has since appointed officials in different capacities to support its mandates.
However, the Department needs to equip human resource professionals to enforce rules and implement
administrative processes, but also to advise senior management on aspects of strategic human resource
management and development.

The NDP has identified a number of areas that require urgent and focused attention to ensure that the Public
Service becomes a career of choice, has the required skills and has the capacity to deliver on the objectives of
government. It is also important that there is public confidence in the competence of public officials to serve the
citizens according to the principles adopted in Chapter 10 of the Constitution of South Africa.

The Department received an unqualified with matters audit opinion - for the 3rd consecutive year. Matters
raised in the AGSA Report were included in the departmental Audit Action Plan.

Given the changing legislative landscape, and the need to strategically position the Department, the organizational
structure was reviewed to support delivery of integrated sustainable human settlements, enhance support for
municipalities and Traditional Leadership institution. Once approved, the reviewed organizational structure will
better position the Department to respond to the changes that may be required. The review of the approved
structure is on-going. Posts are created and abolished as required within the ambit of
legislation/directives/approved submission — this is recorded on PERSAL. Vacant posts are advertised — following
the recruitment and selection policy of the Department. Service terminations, transfers, and appointments are
also recorded on PERSAL. The availability or non-availability of funds also affects the structure. Added to this, it
is increasingly difficult to fill vacant positions according to the PT prescripts, as each critical service delivery post
must be motivated for separately.

In the view of the evolving environment and the challenges facing traditional affairs, it is imperative to review the
organisational structure. Cost containment measures declared by Provincial Treasury, and Government as a
whole, makes it difficult for the Department to fill critical vacant funded positions that are crucial for service
delivery. The incorporation of Ba-Ga Mothibi from North West will also add pressure to the organisational
structure and financial resources of the Department.

Overview of Performance Information

OVERVIEW: Annual Performance
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Programme I: Administration

% of lndlcators

Total || Total Numberof |

Sub- Programme Name Nimbcrof Indicators

1 Eindicators Achieved Achieved

Human Capltal Management [ I 100%
General Support Services 4 4 100%
Security, Risk Management and Internal Controls 3 3 100%
Legal Services o I [ 100%
Planning, Performance Monitoring & Evaluation 4 4 100%
Total 23 23 100%
Fﬁ"a‘ﬁc:allMana‘gemenégel_ ce of the CFO) e F L e i b i = sl N
Financial Administration 7 7 100%
Supply Chain Management 3 3 100%
Total o - 10 10 100%

% of Indicators Achieved for the Year

100% 100%

100%
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40%
20%

0%

Office of the CFO Corporate Services

Programme 2: Human Settlements

- Total | Total Number of o oftndicatars 1

Stb=Progtaninie Nanie Number of IRdicators ;
________ & N indicators Achicved Am'?“‘d
Housing Needs, Planning and Research 4 3 75%
Housing Development 2 | 50%
Housing Asset Management 4 3 75%
Total 10 7 70%

% of Indicators Achieved for the Year
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Programme 3: Cooperative Governance
] B B ~ Total | Total Numberof _, . .
: % of Indicators |

Sub- Programme Nam umber of Indicators S
| S gt _ € e __l;lndit:athrs__ U d Ach;eved_ =
Municipal Administration 80%
MuniciPal Performance Monitoring, Reporting and 4 | 25%
Evaluation
Municipal Infrastructure 2 I 50%
Public Participation 3 2 66,73%
Municipal Planning 5 2 40%
Total 19 10 52,6%
% of Indicators Achieved for the Year
100%
100%
920%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40 Ll 20%
30% i
20%
10%
0%
Municipal Municipal Municipal Public Municipal
Administration Performance Infrastructure Participation Planning

Programme raditional Affairs

Total  Total Numberof , . . |
Sub=Frosramnic Name Number of Indicators = :{::;i;:::'ors '
_ e Indicators | Achicved
Traditional Leadership Institutional Support 2 100%
Secretariat of Houses of Traditional Leaders 5 3 - 60%
Research, Policy and Legislation Development | 0 0%
Total 8 5 62,5%
% of Indicators Achieved for the Year
100%
100% 60%
80%
60%
40% 0%
20% -
0%
Traditional Secretariat of Research, Policy
Leadership Houses of and Legislation
Institutional  Traditional Leaders Development
Support
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4.3

Overview of the financial results of the Department

4.3.1 Departmental receipts

20182009 0 | ©2019/2020
Actual

(Over)/Under
Collection

| (OVver)IUndes - Actual
Departmentalreceipts Estimate | Anionnt S ey Estimate | Amount
Collection

Collected| |PEslieeted

~____R00 | R'W000 R000) R:00000 RI000 R'000
Sale of goods a.nd services 465 486 21 469 447 2
other than capital assets
Interest, dividends and rent 30 0 30 2% I 25
on land
Sale of capital assets 0 0 0
Flnan.cm.l .transactlons in assets 95 20 75 129 65 64
and liabilities
Total 590 506 84 624 513 11

4.3.2 Determination of tariffs

Tariffs utilized within the department is as prescribed by National Treasury i.e. Persal — service rent
commission garnishees 5%, insurance 2, 5%. Parking fees as prescribed by Provincial Treasury is R80-
00. Rental of dwellings is determined by Public Works. There are no free services to report for this
period under review. No bad debts were written off during this period.

4.3.3 Over - collection
The major revenue sources of the Department, which is the sale of goods and services other than
capital assets and financial transactions in assets and liabilities, contributes 75 percent and 21 percent
of the total budget of the Department respectively. The department at year-end has collected 82
percent of the total budget.

4.3.4 Programme Expenditure
(] 3 019 ) Y ) |
DIy D &)
.-'Illl R'000 KOO0 'tll- "Ill R'O000
Administration 31 443 135 374 (3 931) 161 390 161 378 12
Himman 578 889 561 244 17 645 512 540 511824 716
Settlements
Cooperative 146 524 146 524 0 155 606 154 298 | 308
Governance
Traditional 24 425 20 280 4145 23237 21 902 | 335
Affairs
Total 881 281 863 422 17 859 852773 849 402 3371

The graph below gives a picture of the overall expenditure per programme for the 2018/2019 and 2019/2020
financial years.
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Actuall Expenditure

700 000 S
y -
600 000 w 2
500 000
400 000
o - o
300 000 w =03 e o 8
~ 0 3 r e 3
200 000 m m = e X =
= - o ) o ~
= $ 8 8
100 000
elif -
0 " sEw=n  CEaNm
Administration Human Settlements Cooperative Traditional Affairs
Governance

®2017/2018 =2018/2019 - 2019/2020

irement | | gen MY
Programme. g::g_, v:fﬁ; i -u‘n;;gr- Reasonsforvirement Res"t;;';‘d
ol RICD0TE . [of il
Administration 1715
Adherence
Human Settlements (1 375) 716 99.9 'Fl"o offset over expenditure under to budget
rogramme 3 control
measures
Cooperative Governance | 566 1 308 99,2
Adherence
Traditional Institutional (1 906) | 335 943 To offset over expenditure under to budget
Management Programme | and 3 control
measures
Totals 0 3371 99,6

4.4 Future plans of the department

4.4.1 Human Settlements
The Department strives to achieve sustainable human settlements and improved quality of household
life that will culminate in the establishment of viable, socially and economically integrated communities
that are located in areas that allow convenient access to economic opportunities as well as health,
educational and social amenities. It does so by:

+  upgrading informal settlements through the provisioning of internal services to communities;

. restoring dignity of citizens by handing over title deeds and transferring houses to beneficiaries and
allowing them access to economic opportunities (renting out houses, build back-rooms and use
houses as guarantees to secure bank loans);

»  provisioning of houses to low- and middle-income earners through the Social and Rental Housing
Programme;

»  provisioning of houses to the gap market through the Finance-Linked Individual Subsidy
Programme (FLISP);

. rendering town planning services; and

»  the construction of top structures.

£ *-\- =g “‘- 3 e { & S
i, . 2 - N Esr—aae sesct B
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The history of planning and design of human settlements in South Africa is still characterised by biased
spatial planning that largely benefits the minority. Spatial planning was based on a political ideology that
promoted separate development. The majority of the South African population was condemned to the
periphery of major economic centres without access to basic services, amenities and employment
opportunities. While ground-breaking policy documents and legislation were developed and
promulgated in post-apartheid South Africa, the legacy of apartheid spatial planning and design of human
settlements still stubbornly persist twenty-five years into our demaocracy.

In the main, the planned performance for the MTSF is based on this reality and it is strongly aligned to
Chapter 8 of the NDP in seeking to reverse the effects of apartheid spatial planning that still persists in
the democratic South Africa. Priority will specifically be given to human settlements projects in the
approved Priority Housing Developments Areas with the potential to spatial transformation our cities
and towns. The department will also ensure that all the land previously acquired, in the 2014-19 MTSF,
within the PHDA's are completely rezoned towards total spatial transformation.

Outcomes are based on the following four key strategic pillars in order to achieving spatial
transformation through improved integrated settlement development and linking job opportunities and
housing opportunities:

a) Liveable neighbourhoods;

b) Facilitate access to well-located land;
<) Access to adequate housing; and

d) Residential property market.

In order to achieve the outcomes, the following key strategic enablers will be utilised:

a) Provide inputs to the National Department of Human Settlements in developing responsive
policies and programmes. Key programmes such as the Integrated Residential Development
Programme and Social and Economic Amenities programmes will be enhanced with a special
focus on public spaces; Informal Settlements Upgrading Programme; Peoples Housing Process
and Social Housing;

b) Strengthen the implementation of policies and programmes by participating in the development
of requisite capacity and capabilities for human settlements, strengthening data driven policy
and programme implementation, strengthening intergovernmental cooperation and alignment,
strengthening the participation of stakeholders;

) Adopt an outcomes-oriented finance and funding model by directing funding towards PHDA
developments and leveraging private sector investment. Through the Housing Bank, the
department will facilitate affordable housing finance;

d) Improve monitoring, reporting and evaluation on area based planning, spatial transformation
and subsidy and gap market; and
e) Re-align the organisational structure to support the new approach or outcomes.

In implementing outcomes and reaching the desired impact in human settlements delivery, compliance
with key empowerment initiatives for women, youth and vulnerable groups is paramount. The
department will ensure that they meet these empowerment targets without any compromise.

4.4.2 Cooperative Governance
The outcome “Transformation of the Local Government sector” contributes towards chapter 13
(Building a capable state) and 14 (promoting accountability) of the NDP. Municipalities need to ensure
good governance for effective use of public resources and create conditions for investment promotion,
economic growth, job creation, the elimination of poverty and inequality and to achieve citizen
satisfaction as well as to create attractive conditions for investment flows. These investments will grow
municipal revenue and individual income and create sustainable communities.

Special focus will be given to the following dysfunctional municipalities:

Dikgatlong, Magareng, Phokwane, Ga-Segonyana, Joe Morolong, Nama Khoi, Emthanjeni, Kareeberg,
Renosterberg, Siyancuma, Siyathemba, Ubuntu, Kai Garib, Kgatelopele, Tsantsabane

|

B o e &
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Improvement in the functionality of municipalities will create an open, responsive and accountable public
service as envisaged by the NDP and strengthen government’s engagement with citizens. Community
leaders, traditional leaders, religious leaders, business, labour, youth, women and civil society must be
mobilised to create a harmonious existence of all South Africans, everyone contributing to the success
of the municipality and its people.

4.4.3 Traditional Affairs
The outcome “Realising good governance, peaceful co-existence and development within Traditional
Committees” aims to address issues of capacity, and strengthen inter-governmental relations in service
delivery. Implementing the Regulations of Section 81 will close the gap in terms of collaboration
between Traditional Leaders and Elected Municipal Councillors, and will impact greatly on community
development.

Implementation of Legislation and policies will enable strict adherence to the rule of law and fiscal
discipline. IGR Structures are important as it creates an environment for coordination of services to
communities. Availability of resources will sustain the monitoring and implementation of these priority
projects and programmes and the implementation of the Regulations of Section 81, and ensure a co-
ordinated District Development Model.
4.5 Public Private Partnerships
The department did not have any public private partnerships for the year under review.

4.6 Discontinued activities / activities to be discontinued

Programme |: Administration

Effect on the Financial |

operations of, implications of

Listactivities discontnued Reasons for discontinuance andservica each
delivery by the discontinued

_ | department activity

Report on the annual compliance —
with MPAT MPAT no longer implemented None None
NumPer of fund requisitions Moved to Annual Operational Plan None None
submitted
Numbg b of certlﬁ'cates el Moved to Annual Operational Plan None None
compliance submitted
Number of mid-year Moved to Annual Operational Plan | None None
reconciliations submitted
Numbe.tj of monthly . Moved to Annual Operational Plan None None
reconciliations submitted | il

Programme 4: Traditional Affairs
' - N Effecton the | Financial

| .
: | operations of, yplications of
List activitics discontinued Reasonstordscontiniances ) andservice each
delivepy by the discontinued
] _ | department activity
Replaced by:
Number of reports an initiatives to Number of awareness campaigns
promote social development of conducted in traditional communities None None
traditional communities to sensitize vulnerable groups on their
Rights
Replaced by:

Number of traditional leaders
supported to participate in municipal

Number of reports on structured .
councils

engagements between ward
committees and traditional councils

None None
and

Number of Traditional Authorities
supported to participate in the IDP
processes
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Supply chain management

The department has signed its enterprise development programme with National Housing Finance Corporation
(NHFC) to train and grow their women, youth and people with disabilities contractors of the province who are
on CIDB grade | to 5. The implementation of the project was delayed by financial limitations but had been
budgeted for in the next financial year.

The database of construction has assisted greatly in fast tracking the procurement processes without degrading
compliance. It has also assisted in identifying a shortage faced by the province on high CIDB grade contractors,
which lead to the agreement between the department and NHFC.

Gifts and Donations received in kind from non-related parties

The Department has an approved gift policy with a populated gift and donation register, which keeps record of all
disclosed gifts.

Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury

No exemptions and deviations received from National Treasury.

Events after the reporting date

The Department procured goods and services after the announcement by the President that all public sector and
businesses must close immediately to ensure that the impact of COVID-19 is not that severe to the citizens of
South Africa.

The National Treasury Instruction Note NO.8 of 2019/20 on Emergency Procurement were used as a guideline to
do procurement for most critical goods and services for both the departmental staff and some municipalities. The
main reason for using the guidelines on procurement was to ensure that no irregular expenditure will be incurred
or any goods or services provided will be based on exorbitant prices or inflated pricing on items. This did have
an impact on the state of financial affairs of the department after reporting date as at end of March 2020.

The Department did not embark on new programmes, but rather focused on programmes that were already in
the pipeline. This made it easier to engage the local authorities on the interventions and projects already in their
IDP. The department provided water tanks, sanitisers and temporary sanitation in Phokwane Nkandla informal
settlement, which at the time were identified as the epicentre. Sol Plaatje Lerato Park was serviced with
standpipes. Both interventions improved the hygiene and convenient access to water and sanitation to the
settlements.

SOL PLAATJE MUNICIPALITY - LERATO PARK:
» 58 stand pipes erected at 200m radius, of which they are all commissioned

PHOKWANE MUNICIPALITY - NKANDLA:
*  Nkandla Sanitation VIP (Excavation 436, Bottom 282 and top 117)
¢ Woater tanks delivered and operational.
»  Sanitisers delivered per household for 500.

KHAI-MA MUNICIPALITY - WITBANK:
»  Sanitation (VIP) to 14 households — the contractor has been appointed.
¢ The other 76 households have access to sanitation.

It is important to note that the Department is mainly funded from conditional grants, which constitutes 47% of
the total budget, while equitable share represents 53% of the budget. The reductions are effected against both the
equitable share and the conditional grant allocations of the Department. The Department budgeted an amount of
R18,5m in its current baseline for response to COVID-19 in the ‘Province, of which R14 350 510,16 were spent.
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Details of expenditure incurred are as follows:
The Department also spent an amount of R580 000 for the procurement of sanitizers and disinfectants for officials,

to ensure compliance in line with COVID-19 regulations.

Service providers appointed for human settlements projects were:
»  KML45 Trading (PTY) LTD — R | 140 123 for 15 x 10 000 Litre water tanks and 500 hand sanitizers in

Phokwane Local Municipality
e Matela Construction R 9 801 519 for supply of sanitation for 500 households in Phokwane Local

Municipality
«  Thap3lom General Trading — R2 495 741,60 for communal water taps for 3000 households in Sol Plaatje
Local Municipality

Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation

We express appreciation for the diligence with which both the Internal Audit Committee as well as the external
Auditor-General dealt with their tasks, both in giving assistance to the Department and pointing out areas where
we can improve in delivering on our mandate.

Department of Cpoperative Governance, Human Settlements & Traditional Affairs

Date: 31 July 2020
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF
ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent. The annual report is complete,
accurate and is free from any omissions. The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines
on the annual report as issued by National Treasury. The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared
in accordance with the modified cash standard and the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National
Treasury. The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the
judgements made in this information.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control that has been
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the
human resources information and the annual financial statements. The external auditors are engaged to express
an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources
information and the financial affairs of the department for the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

Yours faithfully

Date: 31 July 2020
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STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

Vision

People of the Northern Cape living in integrated sustainable human settlements, with responsive, accountable and
highly effective municipalities and traditional institutions

Mission

To ensure the efficient, effective and economic utilization of departmental resources to maximize service

delivery

To facilitate and manage integrated sustainable human settlements and infrastructure development for

effective service delivery.

To facilitate, monitor and support the consolidation and sustainability phases at municipalities for integrated
and sustainable service delivery.

To promote and support inter-sphere engagement for integrated planning and co-ordination.

To facilitate, develop and support systems and structures to enhance traditional leadership.

Values

The Department has adopted the following set of values that will inform its conduct and approach to effective
service delivery:

Equity:

Non discrimination
Affirmative Action
Gender Equity

Integration of disability issues

Efficiency:

Productivity
The best work methods
Excellent services

Team work:

= Co-operation
= Support

= Trust

Accountability:

= Desire to perform well

= Accepting accountability for your behaviour
= Commitment

Development: Integrity:

=  Enablement and empowerment = Honesty

= Faith in potential of people = Disassociating themselves from all forms of
= Providing opportunities for growth and facilities corruption and unethical behaviour

=  Fair treatment for all = Sound business practices

a

Fairness and equality before the law

LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATES

The Department derive its mandate from Chapters 2; 3; 4; 5; 6; 7; 9; 12, 13; 26; 211 and 212 of the Constitution
of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, herein after referred to as the Constitution.
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LEGISLATIVE MANDATES

Public Finance Management Act (Act No | of 1999)

Promotion of Access to Information Act (Act No of 2000)

Fire Brigade Services Act (Act No 99 of 1987)

GIAMA (Act No 19 of 2007)

National Archives and Records Services of South Africa (Act No 13 of 1996)
Northern Cape Archives Act (Act No of 2013)

Housing Act (Act No 107 of 1997)

The Prevention Of lllegal Eviction From Unlawful Occupation Of Land Act of 1998
Housing Consumer Protection Measures Act of 1998

Rental Housing Act (Act No 50 of 1999 as amended)

Division of Revenue Act (DORA)

Deeds Registry Act (Act No 47 of 1937)

Home Loan and Mortgage Disclosure Act of 2000

Spatial Planning and Land Use Management Act (Act No 16 of 2013)

Social Housing Act (Act No 16 of 2008)

Housing Development Act (Act No 23 of 2008)

The Housing Code Act of 2009

Extension of Security of Tenure Act (Act No 62 of 1997)

Housing Consumers Protection Measures Act (Act No of 1998)
Disestablishment of South African Trust Limited Trust (Act No 26 of 2002)
Property Rating Act and Property Valuation Ordinance (Act No 14 of 1993)
National Housing Code of 2000

Northern Cape Interim Housing Act (Act No 6 of 1999)

Disaster Management Act (Act No 57 of 2002)

Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act (Act No |3 of 2005)
Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act (Act No 20 of 1998)

Local Government: Municipal Systems Act (Act No 32 of 2000)

Local Government: Municipal Structures Act (Act No | 17 of 1998)

Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No 56 of 2003)
Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act (Act No 6 of 2004)
Demarcation Act (Act No of 1998)

Organized Local Government Act (No 52 of 1997)

Local Government: Cross-Boundary Municipal Act (Act No 29 of 1998)
Intergovernmental Fiscal Relations Act (Act No 13 of 2005)

Commission for the Promotion and Protection of the Rights of Cultural, Religious and Linguistic Communities Act
(Act No 19 of 2002)

Traditional Leadership and Governance Framework Act (Act No 41 of 2003)
National House of Traditional Leaders Act (Act No 10 of 1997)

Northern Cape Traditional Leadership Governance and Houses of Traditional Leaders Act (Act No 2 of 2007)
Housing Act (Act No 107 of 2005)

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (Act No 5 of 2000)

Policy Mandates

White Paper on Local Government, 1998

National Development Plan Vision 2030

National Local Government Turn Around Strategy, 2009

Local Government Anti-Corruption Strategy, 2006

Free Basic Services Policy, 2000/01

National Public Participation Framework, 2007

Batho Pele Principles

Policy Framework for Government-Wide Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E) System, 2007
Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information (FMPPI), 2007
National Disaster Management Framework, 2005

National CDW Master Plan,

Municipal Infrastructure Grant Framework, 2004

White Paper on Traditional Leadership, 2003
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8. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

MEC
MrBVass

HOD
Mr B S Lenkoe

Chief Director Chief Director Director:
Human Cooperative Traditional
Settlements Governance Affairs

Chief Director A ;
Chief Financial
Corporate Officer

Services
Vacant Mr RT Stander Ms | Lekalake Vacant Vacant

9. ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MEC

The MEC for the Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs does not
have public entities reporting to him.'

1 Although the Department transfers money to the Housing Development Agency (a public entity) as stipulated on page 38, they (HDA) report directly
to the National Minister of Human Settlements, and not to the MEC.
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2.1

AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA currently performs certain audit procedures on the performance information to provide reasonable
assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance against predetermined
objectives is included in the report to management, with material findings being reported under the Predetermined
Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 73 of the Report of the Auditor General, published as Part E: Financial Information.
OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE

Service Delivery Environment

Programme 2 (Human Settlements), Programme 3 (Cooperative Governance) and Programme 4 (Traditional
Affairs) are the primary services delivery programmes of the Department.

Human Settlements

Recent reports from the Housing Subsidy System (HSS) indicate that the Department has a backlog of 21 160 for
post-1994 properties. Pre-1994 stock is estimated at 3 705. However, this figure might increase due to many
“older” areas currently being formalised post-1994. The backlog which was presented to the National Department
of Human Settlements in the Implementation Plan is 24 865. In order to address these challenges, through the
Title Deed Restoration Project, the Department has appointed dedicated conveyancers.

To date, the Department has made the following substantial progress with respect to the transfer of properties:

Title Deeds

5000 4481

3602

4000 3222
3000 2333
2000 1575

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Challenges such as inadequate budget for goods & services, delay in the delivery of building materials, loss of rare
technical personnel as well as increment of prices of materials due to transportation costs, among others, continue

to beset the Department.

The Department implemented all policies and plans such as the National Housing Code, 2009, which aims at
simplifying the implementation of housing projects by being less prescriptive, while providing clear guidelines to
ensure adequate housing and better living conditions in the Province. The Housing Code, furthermore, sets out
the underlying principles, guidelines, norms and standards, which apply to Government’s various Housing
Assistance Programmes introduced since 1994, and subsequently updated. The most important part of the Housing
Code relevant to informal settlements is Part 3: Upgrading Informal Settlements. Part 2 of the Housing Code is
setting out the Policy Context for the upgrading of informal settlements. It states that upgrading will take place on
a progressive basis in a phased development approach that is flexible, needs-orientated, optimised use of existing
fand and infrastructure; and facilitates community participation in all aspects of development.

In addition, the Comprehensive Plan for Sustainable Human Settlements (BNG) (2004) remains an important
document that gives effect to the National Human Settlement Department’s mandate in terms of the provision of
adequate housing to all, with reference to Section 26 of the Constitution. This plan endeavours to improve the
quality of housing and housing environments by integrating communities and settlements, while retaining the basic
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principles of the Housing White Paper. The plan provides for a shift in focus from providing housing to creating
sustainable human settlements.

During the past almost five years, the Department has delivered 70% of its target for housing delivery. This slow
delivery of houses can be attributed to various reasons - the main being contractors struggling to meet contractual
obligations and not being financially viable, environmental hazards relating to community disruptions, vandalism
and service delivery protests, as well as slow beneficiary administration.

Housing Units

1800
1600
1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Disaggregated information on housing recipients within vulnerable groups

3 arab =

D SRS R
# Aged = older than 60
*Youth = younger than 35

Cooperative Governance

The Department monitors and supports 3| municipalities of the Northern Cape with the aim of improving audit
outcomes, service delivery, and deepening participatory democracy through the establishment of functional
structures and systems that support development and prosperity. However, the Department is conscious that
such an ideal is difficult to realise if municipalities do not address the challenges of inadequate budget, lack of good
governance, poor financial management and irregular appointments. Despite this difficult background, the
Department focuses on those municipalities that are at risk and dysfunctional municipalities, with the aim of turning
around their situation as far as lack of good governance, poor audit outcomes and failure to adhere to the legislative
and regulatory frameworks are concerned. The core services that local government renders, include, clean
drinking water, sanitation, electricity, shelter, waste removal and roads. All these services are basic human rights,
which are essential components of the right to dignity as enshrined in the Constitution and the Bill of Rights. Most
citizens interface with government at local government level; hence, its fundamental ethos must be about serving
people. Since 1994, Local Government has been the primary site of service delivery. Local Government has made
tremendous progress in delivering water, sanitation and refuse removal at all levels within municipalities.
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The structural position of the programme does not find full expression at regional offices and it puts more pressure
on the limited resources that provincial office has in order to monitor and provide support to municipalities. The
programme’s performance is influenced by external factors like lack of cooperation by municipalities, service
delivery protests, etc. The autonomy of municipalities makes it even more difficult to enforce certain interventions
to monitor and strengthen the capacity of municipalities.

The Back-to-Basics initiative, as a vehicle to drive municipalities to return to basic norms, standards and practices
of good governance and progress, resonates well with the aims and objectives of the Department. Furthermore,
the National Development Plan identified the Free Basic Services (FBS) Programme as one of the most critical
social security services targeting poor people / indigent households to improve quality of life.

The Context for the Back to Basics Concept and Approach

The White Paper on Local Government and the Municipal Structures Act requires that district municipalities

should fulfil the following developmental mandates:

* Ensuring integrated development planning for the district as a whole;

* Providing district-wide bulk infrastructural development and services;

» Building capacity of local municipalities in its area to perform their functions and exercise their powers, where
such capacity is lacking; and

+ Promoting equitable distribution of resources between local municipalities to ensure appropriate levels of
municipal services.

Developmental local government remains the visionary foundation for the continuing reconstruction and
development of our country. The Local Government White Paper developed a vision of local government as a key
component of the developmental state. In pursuit of that vision, the Department ensured that they dispense basic
services, social services, and civil and political rights (which includes participatory governance) progressively to an
increased number of citizens. Although the Department realised most of its delivery targets, we still need to do
a lot in order to improve the performance of local government.

The Department entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with Provincial Treasury to deal with Municipal
Finance (municipal audit outcomes, audit committees, credit control, revenue management and debt collection).

Traditional Affairs

The service delivery environment is influenced by external factors such as cooperation between SALGA, traditional
leaders and local municipalities in the full implementation of legislation affecting traditional communities. National
and provincial governments should also, through legislation or other means, allocate roles and functions to
traditional councils and their traditional leaders. Currently, there is a good working relationship between several
government departments and traditional leaders. However, the formalization of the cooperation and collaboration
between government departments and traditional leaders will go a long way in addressing some of the
shortcomings.

The service delivery environment is experiencing challenges due to the relationship between ward councillors and
traditional leaders. It is important for service delivery to have these two structures work in synergy to ensure
development of the rural communities. The fact that there are Community Property Associations within areas of
jurisdiction of traditional leaders creates conflict due to management structures with different roles and
responsibilities within the area of jurisdiction of traditional leaders.

Population distribution

Bordering the cold Atlantic Ocean, Northern Cape is a province of extremes: the lowest and highest temperatures
in the country, the lowest rainfall, the smallest population and the lowest population density. But the surface area
(372 889 km?) is the largest of the nine provinces, comprising 30% of the total area of the country.

Stats SA’s Mid-year population Estimates for 2017?, estimates the South African population at approximately 56,52
million people. Northern Cape, with its 1,21 million people remains the province with the smallest share (2,1 %)
of the South African population. The Northern Cape has by far the smallest population and economy of any of
the provinces.

2 STATISTICAL RELEASE P0302, StatsSA
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The Province is divided into five district municipalities, which in turn are sub-divided into 26 local municipalities.

The Namakwa District Municipality is the largest district in the province (126 836 km?), making up over a third
of its geographical area, and has an estimated population of 119 187. It comprises of six local municipalities: Nama
Khoi, Hantam, Khai-Ma, Kamiesberg, Karoo Hoogland and Richtersveld.

The John Taolo Gaetsewe District Municipality comprises the three local municipalities of Gamagara, Ga-
Segonyana and Joe Morolong (and 186 towns and settlements, of which 80% are villages) in an estimated area of
27 322 km2 The population size is estimated at 24| 836.

The Pixley Ka Seme District Municipality is the second-largest district, and makes up almost a third of the
geographical area - 103 411 km?. It comprises of eight local municipalities: Ubuntu, Umsobomvu, Emthanjeni,
Kareeberg, Renosterberg, Thembelihle, Siyathemba and Siyancuma - with an estimated population of 193 195.

The Frances Baard District Municipality is the smallest district in the Northern Cape, comprising the four local
municipalities of Dikgatlong, Magareng, Phokwane and Sol Plaatje in an area of only 12 836 km®. The district
however accommodates the largest proportion of the province’s population - estimated at 383 429.

The Zwelentlanga Fatman Mgcawu (in short ZF Mgcawu) District Municipality at 102 484 km?, makes up just
under a third of the province's geographical area and includes the vast Kalahari Desert, Kgalagadi Transfrontier
Park and the former Bushmanland. The estimated population of 254 349 people reside in the five local
municipalities of Dawid Kruiper, Kai !Garib, Tsantsabane, !Kheis and Kgatelopele.

Population vs Area/km?
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Service Delivery Improvement Plan

The department has completed a Service Delivery Improvement Plan. The tables below highlight the Service
Delivery Plan and the achievements to date.

Main services and standards

601 housing units completed. The desired
completion of housing units could not be
achieved due to:
¢ delays in beneficiary administration;

community unrest;
* slow SCM processes; no material on site;
» poor workmanship;
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| Current/actual =

Main services  Beneficiaries = standardof | standard of
) sewice '

e

contractor has financial challenges, does r not

adhere to non-compliance issued by the

NHBRC, and is not listening to instructions

from inspectors;

¢ delay in delivery of materials; outstanding
snag list;

* water challenges/ shortages;

* Municipalities do not send beneficiary lists for
future projects;

¢ bulk infrastructure is a serious problem in
housing delivery; and

* dolomitic areas pose a serious challenge in
housing delivery.

1575 Title deeds registered.

* Delays in signing of the registration
documents by all municipalities.

= : s « Conveyancers slow in delivery.

g:e\:;sslon of Title (Qe::gf:;ng 2333 title deeds 6100 title deeds ¢ Untraceable beneficiaries.

P + Department had 13 General Plans to register.

The outstanding pre-94 and post-94 title

deeds were 15 000. All these properties

were locked up in the 13 General Plans.

Batho Pele arrangements with beneficiaries (Consultation access etc.)
_Current/actual arrangements | Desiredarrangements. |
Constant visits to communities by Regional
Community Liaison Officers with the
reinforcement of CDW's and
municipalities.

Actual achievements |

All stakeholders to have joint outreach

. o Involvement of communities.
programmes in communities.

Service dehvery mformaﬂon tool

Officials to ensure that all mformatlon
needed by communities are distributed
to beneficiaries and potential
beneficiaries.

Service Delivery Improvement Team are
informing communities through CDWs and
municipal mentors.

Service Charter displayed in all

departmental offices and Service Delivery
Improvement Plan

By walklng-m of re5|dents at our dlﬁ'erent “Beneficiaries satisfied with the services

regional offices and the provincial office. Utilization of CDWs in the visits to provided by the department, but the
Implementing of the Complaints communities. department to still has to engage
Management Policy. communities

Organisational environment

The Department operates within the approved organizational structure of 2008, despite new posts having been
created and filled. To ameliorate this challenge, the Department has developed a draft organizational structure,
which was submitted to the Office of the Premier for input. A business case study was conducted in this regard
as a requirement, and consultation with the Department of Public Service and Administration is on course. A letter
was written to the CFO requesting the Assurance letter for proposed posts ensure that funds are available for
the proposed posts. The DPSA and Office of the Premier need the Assurance Letter as part of evidence for
proposed structure to be approved.

Although the Department’s budget has seen a decline over the years, the Department has made serious strides in
the areas of MPAT, human resource plan, management of diversity, employee health and wellness, as well as skills
development and capacity building. So far, the Department has been meeting reporting compliance requirements
in the areas of annual performance plans, performance monitoring and evaluation of internal service delivery
projects. The Auditor-General's 2018/19 report has shown improvement on both financial and non-financial
information. Programme 2 received an unqualified opinion on performance information for the 2nd consecutive

year.
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The administration is responsible for management practices based on norms and standards, as well as local and
international best practice models. The departmental performance is measured by the quantity and quality of the
management and administrative practices as well as performance against service delivery to citizens.

Ongoing research and analysis within administration is therefore required to assist decision making by measuring
the effectiveness and efficiency of policies, plans, operations and practices through evidence based methods in
order to benchmark and baseline organizational functionality and provide alternative delivery models.

The National Development Plan 2030 asserts that improved Human Resource capacity in departments is critical
for the effective implementation of the steps identified above as well as the broader professionalism of individual
departments. The Department has since appointed officials in different capacities to support its mandates.
However, the Department needs to equip human resource professionals to enforce rules and implement
administrative processes, but also to advise senior management on aspects of strategic human resource
management and development.

The NDP has identified a number of areas that require urgent and focused attention to ensure that the Public
Service becomes a career of choice, has the required skills and has the capacity to deliver on the objectives of
government. It is also important that there is public confidence in the competence of public officials to serve the
citizens according to the principles adopted in Chapter 10 of the Constitution of South Africa.

In the view of the evolving environment and the challenges facing traditional affairs, it is imperative to review the
organisational structure. Cost containment measures declared by Provincial Treasury, and Government as a
whole, makes it difficult for the Department to fill critical vacant funded positions that are crucial for service
delivery. The incorporation of Ba-Ga Mothibi from North West will also add pressure to the organisational
structure and financial resources of the Department.

2.4 Key policy developments and legislative changes

° Traditional and Khoisan Leadership Bill
° the National Circumcision Initiation Bill

3. STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS

Strategic Oliteome Orlented
Goal

Strateglc du come. Orlerltad i Responswe, accountable, effectlve and efficient developmental local government
Goal system

PROGRAMME 4: TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS |

Strategic Sl e it | An efficient and effective institution of traditional leadership that enhances
Goal | sustainable development and service delivery within traditional communities

4. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME

4.1 Programme |: Administration

Purpose
The purpose of programme | is to put in place mechanisms and structures that can support the department in

developing capacity and professional ethos by providing support to all programmes.
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Description
Programme | renders strategic services in relation to planning, performance information reporting, Information
Technology, financial management and human resources to all programmes of the department.

Programme is divided into the following two chief directorates:
= Corporate Services
= Office of the CFO

Sub-programmes

The Corporate Services Chief Directorate consists of the following sub-programmes:
= Human Capital Management

= General Support Services

= Legal Services

*  Security

» Planning, Performance Monitoring & Evaluation

The Office of the CFO is responsible for the financial management of the department and consists of the following
sub-programmes:

=  Financial Management

= Supply Chain Management

Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Strategic objectives
' Deviationivom
plangcd taraet
ta Actial
Achievement
for 2019/2020

Actual Planned AEGEual
Achicves Tarset Achicves
e ment

ment
201812019 | 294972020 50192020

Strategic Objective {SO) |
SthatesicObiective
Indicators (SO

Comment on
deviations

o ~Budget Budget |  Budget
Setting policies and sp eegch Sp eegch Spesch
SOl I: priorities for the abled eabled obled
Department by 2020 timeously timeously timeously
Provide corporate ?4‘?;?!' MPAT
SOl 2: | support services to the Level 3 standard 2 | discontinued
Department by 2020 Level 3
: : Strive Though there was a
F::: ree;ﬂ::tt I:: dﬁnancnal Audit towards Audit reduction in the matters
SOl 3: accotgntabili b outcome Unqualified outcome of emphasis, the
’ improvin a:);ity remained audit with remained Department still received
ouzcom e§ by 2020 the same no matters Unqualified an audit outcome of
Y of emphasis unqualified with matters

Performance indicators

Dé&viation from
planned tirpet
to Actual
BChieveient
for 20119/2020

Actual Actual

Achieve- lf'l_anned Achicvos
ArZet
Fcnt

ment
20182019 201912020 551002020

Comment on

Performmanca indicator A e
deviations

Sub-Programme: Human Capital Management
Number of reports submitted on
the implementation of the approved 4 | |
organisational structure

Number of reports submitted on

the implementation of the approved 4 | |
Human Resource Plan

Number of PERSAL reports 4 4 4
submitted

Number of conditions of 4 4 4

employment reports submitted
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Deviation from
Acrual Actual plannedtarset

X Planned 3
Achieve- Achieve- to Actual Comment on

ment Achiavarient deviations

§or2019/2020

Performance [ndicatoy Target

ment
20182019 | 201912020 505020

Number of recruitment reports | T — ]
. 4 4 4

submitted

Number of reports submitted on 4 4 4

labour relations matters
Number of reports submitted on
the implementation of the EHW 4 4 4 4
Pillar Plans

‘Number of reports submitted on
the implementation of the Gender 1 | |
Equality Strategic Framework

Number of reports submitted on
the implementation of the Job I | I
Access Strategic Framework
Implementation Plan

‘Number of reports submitted on
the implementation of the approved 4 4 4 ]
Workplace Skills Plan

Number of reports submitted on
the implementation of EPMDS
Sub-Programme: General Support Services
| Number of reports submitted on
the implementation of the 4 4 4
Communication Strategy
Number of reports submitted on

the implementation of the ICT 4 4 4
Strategy - -
Number of reports submitted on h 4 4 4

fleet management

Number of reports submitted on
the implementation of approved 4 4 4
Records Mamagement Policy ~ | | | N | IR ———— |
' Sub-Programme: Security
' ‘Number of reports submittedon |

Departmental Security Management 4 4 4
in line with MISS and MPSS o - B
Number of Integrated risk
. 4 4 4

management reports submitted L
Number of Audit Action Plans

) 4 4 4
submitted

" Sub-Programme: Legal Services
Number of reports submitted on
the implementation of the Legal 4 4 4
Compliance Improvement Plan R
Sub-Programme: Policy, Planning, Monitoring & Evaluation

" Number of Annual performance | | |
plan submitted -
Number of quarterly performance

- 4 4 4

_ reports submitted |
Number of Annual performance I i |
reports submitted

Number of reports submitted on 4 4 4
the implementation of the SDIP

Actual Actual
Behieyes Fianned Achieve-
Performance Indicator z iareet

Deviation from

planfied €aroet
foRctual Comment on

3 eViat
ment Achilevernant deviations

| for 2019/2020

ment e
201812019 | 201212020 501915020

Sub-P Finz Administratio - . wL o B Nies D~
‘Annual budget submitted _ [ | i | [ K
Adjusted budget submitted o I U I i —
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J;ct-ual BB cviationiromy
Riznned A hiawbe plahRcditarset
Narget to Actual

Mment a peht :
_ _ 201:9/2020 - Achievement
2018/2019 | 20 l9.~'2{l_20 for 2019/2020

Actual
Achieve- Commenton

deviations

Periormanceindicator

ChiefDirectorate: Financial Managemene
Number of in-year oring
reports submitted
Number of Annual Financial | T | |
Statements submitted
Number of Interim financial
statements submitted
Number of Instruction Note 34
reports submitted
Number of annual tax

Efgnciliations submittedﬁ . I

Sub-Programme: Supply Chain Management

Number of reports on approved
4 4 4
Procurement Plan B | Il B —
Number of supply chain 12 12 12
management reports submitted i I | ||
Numl?er of LOGIS reports 4 4 4
submitted

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance
The Programme achieved all of their indicators for the year, bringing their annual achievement to 100%.

Changes to planned targets
There were no changes to the planned targets.

Linking performance with budgets

This Programme has spent R161 378 million of its final allocation of R162 265 million which gives variance of R887
thousand. The variance of R887 thousand is made up of savings on Compensation of Employees and Capital
Assets. The over expenditure on Good and Services is mainly as a result of overspending on legal fees, audit costs
and fleet services.

Chief Directorate expenditure

_ ~ 2018/2019 2019/2020 ]
Sub-Programme Final | Actual (Over)/Under | Final ~ Actual (Over)/Under |
Paie Appropriation || Expenditure | Expenditure | Appropriation | Expenditure | Expenditure

| | RO00 | RO0D RIO00 | R000 R RI00
Office of the MEC 13220 13079 141 14498 207
Corporate Services 718223 122295 @o72) 146 892 148 951 (2 059)
Total 131 443 135 374 (3 931) 161 390 161378 J3

Programme 2: Human Settlements

Purpose

The purpose of this programme is to develop sustainable human settlements in the Northern Cape within the
context of transforming our cities, towns and rural areas by building cohesive, sustainable and caring communities
with closer access to work and social amenities.

Description

Housing (human settlements) is a Schedule 4 A function in the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa
(hereafter referred to as the Constitution), which means that it is a concurrent function shared by national and
provincial government. Programme 2 derives its mandate from that Schedule of the Constitution.

The reality of housing delivery is, however, that it is an integrated function performed by all three spheres of
government, which each performs specific roles. The National Housing Code sets out the key functions of
provincial government in housing, which includes, but is not limited to:

= determining policy and legislation;

= coordinating housing development in the province;

= intervention;
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= multi-year planning of national and provincial housing programmes;
= accreditation; and
= monitoring accredited municipalities.

Sub-Programmes

There are three (3) sub-programmes within the Chief Directorate, namely:
= Housing Needs, Planning and Research

*  Housing Development

» Housing Asset Management

Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

traic objectives

Deviation from
planned target
to Actual
Achievement
for 2019/2020

Actual Planned Actual
Achieve- Achicves
Target
ent ment

5018/2019 | 2ON92020 L5 07670

StratesicOblechive (SO
StratesicObjective
tadicators(S©O1)

Comment on
deviations

SO: Enhanced institutional capability for effe tive coordination of spatial investment decisions by 2020
Approved multi-year
SOl Housing Development Plan | | I

(MYHDP) by 2020

SO: Adequate housing and improved quality living environment by 2020

The target was not

achieved due to:

» delays in beneficiary

administration;

community unrest;
slow SCM processes;
no material on site;
poor workmanship;
contractor has
financial challenges,
does not adhere to
non-compliance
issued by the

NHBRC, and is not

Subsidy housing listening to

SOl: opportunities created by 541 1206 601 -605 instructions from

2020 inspectors;

e delay in delivery of
materials;

« outstanding snag list;

¢ water challenges/
shortages;

* Municipalities do not
send beneficiary lists
for future projects;

¢ bulk infrastructure is
a serious problem in
housing delivery; and

* dolomitic areas pose
a serious challenge in
housing delivery.

| SO: I_’rovide human settlement wigh a_sse_i;_and invengglzl management bZ 2‘020

Delays in signing of
the registration
documents by all
municipalities.

Improved home- .
¢ Conveyancers slow in

SOl: ownership for beneficiaries 2333 6 100 1575 -4525 deli
by 2020 elivery.
Y «  Untraceable
beneficiaries.

+ Department had |3
General Plans to
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N
Actual Actual Deviation from

Achieve- Rlahned Achicves planneditarser

Strategic Objective (SO}
Strategic Objective
Indicators (SOI)

C nto
to Bctual RUIE BN

ENt s deviations
Rclneyement

for 2019/2020

larget

ment
Da1e2009 | 2 220 o 0o 500

register. The
outstanding pre-94
and post-94 title
deeds were %5 000.
All these properties
were locked up in the
I3 General Plans.

Performance indicators
D - w
Actyual Actual eviation from

£ Planned : plannedtarget
Performance Indicator Rchipve Tarect Sciieies to Actual eoinEnton
ment deviations

fhent :
200912020 DchievEment
201812019 201%9/2020 for 2019/2020

Number of policy guidelines | I |
approved
Number of reports on M&E
conducted on accredited | 1 I
municipalities

The JTG district put in a
Number of consumers exposed to 5007 4500 5643 +1143 concerted effort to
consumer education rollout consumer
education in the District.
Training scheduled in
March 2020, in
partnership with the
National Youth
Development Agency, did
not materialise due the

Number of yout.h‘in_volved in Skills 156 200 163 37
Development Initiatives

COVID 19 lockdown.

LENall

“Number of households provided | Over-achievement as 2

with access to basic engineering 2 144 830 979 +149 result of re-allocation of
services funds to services.

The target was not
achieved due to:

« delays in beneficiary
administration;
community unrest;
slow SCM processes;
no material on site;
poor workmanship;
contractor has
financial challenges,
does not adhere to
non-compliance issued
by the NHBRC, and is
not listening to
instructions from

Number of housing units at

practical completion under all 541 1206 601 -605 inspectors;
programmes ¢ delay in delivery of
materials;

¢ outstanding snag list;

« water challenges/
shortages;

* Municipalities do not
send beneficiary lists
for future projects;

* bulk infrastructure is a
serious problem in
housing delivery; and

* dolomitic areas pose a
serious challenge in
housing delivery.
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[ I Deviation from

Ac?ual Plahned AcFuaI plannedtatset
Achijeve- T Bchjeves Actial

ment | ooEon | ment Al en oriert
ek ‘ ChiEvemen

ROI812019 : ROI5/2820 | Yor 20152020

Comment on
deviations

Reriormahee Indicator

+ Delays in signing of
the registration
documents by all
municipalities.

+ Conveyancers slow in
delivery.

¢ Untraceable
beneficiaries.

Number of title deeds registered 2333 6 100 1575 -4525 * Department had 13

General Plans to
register. The
outstanding pre-94
and post-94 title
deeds were 15 000.
All these properties
were locked up in the
13 General Plans.

| Number of conditional grant ' | : |
business plans submitted (HSDG)
Number of conditional grant New I | o
business plans submitted (TRG)
Number of monthly conditional
grant reports submitted to national 12 24 24
human settlements and other
stakeholders (HSDG and TRG)

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

The re-alignment and finalization of the organisational structure will assist in the filling of critical vacancies.
Improved public participation within communities should limit environmental hazards relating to community
disruptions, vandalism and service delivery protests. Capacity building and training of contractors through the
NHBRC and Construction Industry Development Board (CIDB) should alleviate some of the challenges
experienced, e.g. contractors not being financially viable, poor project and cash flow management by contractors,
and slow contractor performance on site. The Department and municipalities should work together to streamline
beneficiary identification and administration. The availability of bulk infrastructure has influenced the performance
of the programme negatively, therefor the availability of bulk infrastructure should be verified prior to project
approval and procurement.

Changes to planned targets
There were no changes to the planned targets.

Linking performance with budgets
Programme 2’s total expenditure amounts to R511 824 million or 99,9% of its final allocation of R512 540 million.

The programme has spent 99,9 % of the final budget by 31 March 2020. The conditional grants were 100% spent
and no rollovers will be requested.

Sub-programme expenditure:
' | 1 Bl 2018/2019 5 ~2019i2020
Sub= Propranime Final ~ Actuall || (Over)/Under Final |~ “Actual (Over)/Under
Nane Appropriation || Expenditure | Expenditure | Appropriation. Expenditure Expenditure

'~ R'0ODO | RW000 | RO00 R'000 R'000 RI000

Human Settlement

Needs, Planning and 13 451 13 457 ©) 1 605 10918 687

Research

fianan Setil sment 529 476 527 077 2399 479 434 478 400 | 034

Development

i 35 962 20710 15 252 21 501 22 506 (1 005)
sset Management

Total 578 889 561 244 17 645 512 540 511824 716
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Programme 3: Cooperative Governance

Purpose
The purpose of Programme 3 is to strengthen the capacity of municipalities in the province to perform their

functions.

Description
This programme is responsible for oversight, support, monitoring and coordination of municipalities.

Sub-Programmes
The programme consists of the following five sub-programmes:

Municipal Administration

Municipal Performance, Monitoring, Reporting and Evaluation
Municipal Infrastructure Development

Public Participation

Municipal Planning
Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Strateglc objectlves

sviation from

- ' AL en. | Rlanncdtarset
StrategucObj 31 plciardlie Target to Actual

Indicators (SOI) 20] 8!2019 2019/2020 2019/2020 | g?;:‘::;;lg;i;

Comment on
deviations

SO: Intergovernmental and democratic governance for a functional system of cooperatwe governance by
2020

Municipalities with
SOl I: functional municipal 31 31 31
councils by 2020

Municipalities with

functional Municipal Non-reporting by
SOI2: | Public Accounts 31 31 8 -23 municipalities to be
Committees (MPAC) by addressed.

2020
“Sub-Programme: Municipal Performance Monitoring, Reporting and Evaluation R i
SO: Sound administrative governance within 31 municipalities by 2020
Support and coordinate

Non-reporting by

SOl I: !'nunicipal management | 8 8 -23 municipalities to be
improvement plans addressed
(LGMIMs) by 2020 ’

b-Programme: Municipal Infrastructare == === 0000

SO: Members of ;h:s“ocnety have sustainable and reliable access to basic services by 2020

Percentage of Used StatsSA data of
SOl I: | households with access 95.3% 95% 95,3%° +0,3% General Household Survey
to water by 2020 2018
Percentage of Used StatsSA data of
SOl 2: | households with access 90% 95% 90%* -5% General Household Survey
to sanitation by 2020 2018
Percentage of Used StatsSA data of
SOI3: | households with access 91.7% 95% 91,7% -3,3% General Household Survey
to electricity by 2020 2018
Perce
houser::l%es c\::ith access Usd StateSA daca of
SOl 4: 65,4% 75% 65,4%° -9.6% General Household Survey
to refuse removal by 2018
2020

Sub-Programme: Public Participation _
SO: Enhanced community participation at local level to strengthen relations between local government and
the community by 2020

3 General Household Survey 2018 information used, as StatsSA has not published 2019 information.
4+ General Household Survey 2018 information used, as StatsSA has not published 2019 information.
5 General Household Survey 2018 information used, as StatsSA has not published 2019 information.
6 General Household Survey 2018 information used, as StatsSA has not published 2019 information.
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Local municipalities
implementing
Community Work
Programmes by 2020

SOl 1:

SO: Municipalities with development planning capacity and sector
Municipalities with
legally compliant IDPs by 3
2020

plans by 2020

Only 12 municipalities
submitted adoption dates
of Final 2019/20 IDPs

SOt I: 31 12 -19

Performance indicators
> i ' Deviation from
planneditarget
toACL Al
Achievement
foy 2001972020

Actiral
Achieve-
ment
201197120720

Actual

Achicves l:":_anned
arpet
ment

201812019 ROI/20240

Comment on'deviations

Ecriornyance Indicator

Number of municipdlities
supported to comply with MSA
regulations on the appointment
of senior managers (Outcome 9,
Sub-outcome 4)(B2B Pillar 5)

31

31 3l

Number of capacity building
interventions conducted in 0
municipalities (Outcome 9, Sub-
outcome 3) (B2B Pillar 5)

+3

Over achieved to remedy
under-performance

Number of municipalities
supported to achieve the 50/50
representation of women in
section 56 posts (B2B Pillar 5)

31 3l 3l

Number of municipdlities
monitored on the extent to
which anti-corruption measures
are implemented (Outcome 9,
Sub-outcome 4) (B2B Pillar 3)

31 28

-3

No reply by municipalities
caused that 3 municipalities
could not be assessed.

Number of reports on the
implementation of District | 4 4
IGR Fora recommendations

on mplementauon of
Back to Basics action plans by

Reports submltted not

addressing implementation of

l_iL:;E iI r{.;.:{.’l.

nal 'L' ’;E_}_"_:___

" Number of municipalities
monitored on the
implementation of infrastructure
delivery programmes (Outcome
9, Sub-outcome 1)(B2B Pillar 5)

26

municipalities (Outcome 9, Sub- 4 4 0 4 municipal action plans as per
outcome 4) (B28 Pillar 5) TID.

Number of municipdlities

supported to institutionalize the There is a need to implement a
performance management 31 31 10 -21 system to track performance
system (PMS) (Outcome 9, Sub- of municipalities.

outcome 4) (B28 Pillar 5)

Number of Section 47 reports .
mpiodos rstei o || . : v | betmedn
MSA (Outcome 9, Sub-outcome ith due dat P

4) (B2B Pillar 5) WIEHERE Cats

Number of municipalities guided

to comply with the MPRA

(Outcome 9, Sub-outcome 4) 26 26 26

(B2B Pillar 4)

Number of municipalities
supported to implement indigent
policies (Outcome 9, Sub-
outcome !}(B2B Pillar 2)

26 26 24

2

meetings.

Although both Joe Morolong
and Sol Plaatje Municipalities
were assessed, the National
COVID-19 lockdown
hampered the feedback
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DPeviation from
planned target
toActual
Achievement
for 2019/2020

Actual
Achieve-

Actual
Achicve:
meht
| 2019/2020

Planned
Target
2015/2029

Performanceindicator Colirention deviations

ment
2018/2019

Only counting those
municipalities that were
supported in all 4 the quarters
as determined by the TID.

Number of municipalities
supported to maintain functional R
ward committees Outcome 9, 0 26 ' 25
Sub-outcome 2) (B2B Pillar 1)
Number of municipalities
supported to respond to

community concerns (Qutcome I 26 26

9, Sub-outcome 2)(B28B Pillar 1)

Number of Employment Training of local reference
Opportunities created for 9201 7 800 9523 +1723 Gommiies Members assisted

in the registering process of

young people in municipalities beneficiaries.

e Municioal Plant
: Municipal Planning

_It_- 1-_15‘: AL ry —-—-f=|;q

Number of municipdlities 5 Municipalities received
supported with development of 9 3] 2 -10 feedback on assessments too
IDP (Outcome 9, Sub-outcome late. 5 Municipalities were not
/) assessed.

Only counting those targeted
municipalities that were
supported in all 4 the quarters
as determined by the TID.

Number of municipalities
supported with the 4 12 7 -5
implementation of SPLUMA

Number of reports on data 4 4 4
obtained for GIS outputs

Only counting those
municipalities that were
supported in all 4 the quarters
as determined by the TID.

Number of municibalities
supported to maintain functional 2 5 | -4
Disaster Management Centres

Number of municipdlities
supported on Fire Brigade 4 5 5
Services

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance
The re-alignment and finalization of the organisational structure will assist in the filling of critical vacancies.
Improved management of performance at sub-programme level should alleviate some of the underperformance.

Changes to planned targets
There were no changes to the planned targets.

Linking performance with budgets
The Programme has spent R154 298 million of its final allocation of RI54 746 million as at 31 March 2020.
Compensation of Employees was overspend due to secondments to municipalities.

Stubs

Sub-programme expenditure

2018/2019

2019/2020

ProRramTHG Final Actual {Over)/Under Final Actual | (Over)lUnder |
l& Appropriation || Expenditure Expenditure Appropriation. | Expenditure Expenditure

| ket RI000 R'000 ~ R'000 ~ R'000 . ROBO  RW000

Local 109 430 109 744 314) 114249 121 103 (6 854)

Governance

Deyelopment 37 094 36 780 314 41 357 33195 8 162

& Planning

Total 146 524 146 524 0 I55 606 154 298 1308

Programme 4: Traditional Affairs

Purpose

The purpose of Programme 4 is to manage and support traditional leadership institutions. Traditional Affairs
Directorate coordinates governance within traditional institutions through implementation of appropriate policies,
systems and regulatory frameworks, enhancement of organisational efficiency and effectiveness, establishment of
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capacity development systems and partnership models, undertaking research and development on related matters
as well as monitoring and evaluation of performance of traditional structures.

Description

The focus of the programme is to give support to traditional leadership structures in the province. All the eight
recognized traditional leaders are based at John Taolo Gaetsewe district. There are two houses of traditional
leaders, namely John Taolo Gaetsewe Local House of Traditional Leaders and Provincial House of Traditional
Leaders, which is based in Kimberley. Traditional Leaders serve as the custodians of traditions, customs and
culture of their constituent communities and communal land. Traditional councils are responsible for the overall
leadership and management of affairs of individual areas of jurisdiction under traditional leaders. Traditional
councils are by law constituted by sixty percent of the councillors appointed by the senior traditional leader and
forty percent elected councillors by the community to represent them in these structures. Financial administration
of any funds donated or allocated to the respective traditional councils is the responsibility of such a council and
their administrative staffs keeps records of all transactions in this regard. The Directorate is responsible for the
overall management of these funds. The mandate of the Provincial and Local Houses of Traditional Leaders is to
advise the Provincial Government on customary law, traditions, customs and culture, as well as preserve and
promote indigenous knowledge systems and heritage. With the Khoi-San representatives co-opted and
participating fully in the Provincial House of Traditional Leaders since April I, 2000, the Northern Cape has
recorded a historic milestone equal to none.

Sub-programmes

e Traditional Leadership and Institutional Support
o Secretariat of Houses of Traditional Leaders

o Research, Policy and Legislation Development

Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Strategic objectives

| Deviation from
planhcditaroct
to Actual

Actual Actual
Achicye- Fl_‘"“ed Achieve-
ment | yisdes0 L M | pcicienent
. i , chievemen
- 204812019 2022020 | for2019/2020 | _
SO: Build good governance and sound administration within the institution of traditional leadership and its

stakeholders by 2020

Functional traditional
SOl I: | leadership structures by 8 8 8
2020

Strategic Objective (SO)/
Strategic Objective
Indicators (SOI)

Comment on
deviations

Performnc idicrs

Deviation from
platneditarset
201972019 2019/2020 Az;‘g’:“l:‘i"t
fer 2019/2020
S e: r N BEsia___iCmwy,
Number of traditional councils 8 8 8
supported to perform their functions
Number of capacity building
programmes provided to the 5 4 4
institution of Traditional Leadership
| Sub-Programme: Secretariat of Houses of Traditional Leaders L
er of activities of the

Actual
A chieves

| Actual

Fores Pianned

Naroet
2011972020

Comment on

Perforniance Indicator =g
deviations

Num Due to Covid-19
Provincial and Local Houses of 14 16 15 1 lockdown, opening of the
Traditional Leaders in compliance House could not take
with Act 2 of 2007 place.

Number of awareness campaigns Due to a full schedule for
conducted in traditional the quarter an awareness
communities to sensitize vulnerable New I 0 A campaign was planned for
groups on their Rights March, however COVID-

19 regulations limited the
gathering of people.
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Deviation from
planned target
Performancelndicator Target to Actual

HIenh ment &
2019/2020 Achievement
201812019 2019/2020 £or2019/2020

Actual Actual
Conimenton

deviations

Achicves Flained Achieves

Number of initiation schools
complying with the National New 1 |
Initiation schools guidelines

Number of traditional leaders

supported to participate in New 8 8

municipal councils _| B N

Number of Traditional Authorities In an attempt to limit
supported to participate in the IDP New 4 10 +6 costs, all the secretaries
processes of the Traditional

Authorities were trained.

-12,5%

claims/disputes processed litigation.

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

Given the changing legislative landscape, and the need to strategically position the Department, the organizational
structure was reviewed to support delivery of integrated sustainable human settlements, enhance support for
municipalities and Traditional Leadership institution. Once approved, the reviewed organizational structure will
better position the Department to respond to the changes that may be required. The review of the approved
structure is on-going. Posts are created and abolished as required within the ambit of
legislation/directives/approved submission — this is recorded on PERSAL. Vacant posts are advertised — following
the recruitment and selection policy of the Department. Service terminations, transfers, and appointments are
also recorded on PERSAL. The availability or non-availability of funds also affects the structure. Added to this, it
is increasingly difficult to fill vacant positions according to the PT prescripts, as each critical service delivery post
must be motivated for separately.

Changes to planned targets
There were no changes to the planned targets.

Linking performance with budgets

The programme did not overspent its final adjusted budget. The material variance for this Programme is 5.7 % of
the final budget of R23 333 million. The programme realised savings on Goods and Services (R1,148 million) and
Compensation of Employees (R174 thousand).

Sub-programme expenditure

U 201872019 o W ‘201972020
Sub- Programme Final Actual (Over)iUnder Final Actual (Over)/Under
Name Appropriation | Expenditure | Expenditure | Appropriation Expenditure | Expenditure
~_R00O [ R'ODD __RODO
Traditional Affairs 24 425
Total 24 425 20 280 4145 23 237 21 902 1335
TRANSFER PAYMENTS

Transfer payments to public entities
oAl iy Sérvicesrendercdibyl INAMBENE transicrred M INATHDENE=pen t By nchievenien s ol
fiana CURGICERtLY the publicentity | tothepublicentity  the public entity | the public entity

Council of Geoscience DolotioR St R6 454 607.75 R6 454 607.75 | CGS
o Investigations ) N
Proiect Management Town Planning, Civil
Housing Development Agency | ¢ I -t 28 R84 302 819.57 R72 086 061.00 | Services and Top
) ) PP B | Structures |
Nat!onal .Home Bun!ders Enrolment fees/Forensic R7 395 368.84 R7 395 368.84 Project enrolment &
Registration Council Assessments I B | Home enrolment

Transfer payments to all organisations other than public entities

The table below reflects the transfer payments made for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020

3 ‘
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Did the dept. Emonnt Amount
it L complywtiisia 8 transferred spent by
przanisation funds were used | (£} G} of che PRMA (RI0D) the catity

Type of Purpose for which the

Name of transferee

Frances Baard District Municipality | Kgotso Pula Nala—Labour |  Yes 4000 000
Pixley Ka Seme District Municipality | intensive projects at Yes 4 000 4000
| ZF Mgcawu District Municipality | Municipalities to create job | Yes | 4000 4000
“John Taolo Gaetsewe | District Municipality | opportunities in § Yes ' 4000 4000 |
| Namakwa | District Municipality | communities Yes 4000 4000
‘Dawid Kruiper Local Municipality | Yes ' 650 650
~Emthanjeni Local Municipality Yes | 680 680
John Taolo Gaetsewe | District Municipality Yes | 900 900 |
‘Nama Khoi Local Municipality Accreditation Yes ' 800 | - 800
Namakwa District Municipality Yes 800 800
Pixley Ka Seme District Municipality Yes | 720 720
ZFM Mgcawu " District Municipality i Yes | 750 750 |
" Sol Plaatje Local Municipality h Yes 700 700
Siyathemba Local Municipality | Subsidy Administration Yes o 30 30

The table below reflects the transfer payments budgeted for in the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020, but
the Department made no transfer payments.
& | | Purpose for which Ampount budgeted

Name of transfereée | the funds were to be for

Amount transferred || Reasons why fiinds were
(R'000) not transferred

used | (R'000)

6. CONDITIONAL GRANTS

6.1 Conditional grants and earmarked funds paid
The table below describes each of the conditional grants and earmarked funds paid by the department.

Conditional Grant: Disaster Management Grant

'Department which transferred the grant Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs
Purpose of the grant To enhance municipalities’ capacity to deal with disasters and fire incidents

Improve response time to deal with disasters, to enhance functionality of disaster

units in municipality's emergency. Reduce domestic and veld fire incidents

2 Reviewing of the disaster management plans, education, training and awareness

Actualoutputs achicved campaigngplans, disaster managerangent and zre services equipment fcng DDC

Amcunt peramended DORA{R'O00) R 1231

Amount received (R'000) R 1231

Reasonsifamountas per DORAWasnot

received

Amount spent by the department (R'000) R 1231

IReasonsforcheiunds dnspent by the entity None

Reasons for deviations on performance | None

Writing letters signed by the HOD to encourage municipalities to adhere to DORA

and also to increase their spending capacity

Mornitoring mechanjsm by the receiving Submission of business plans, expenditure reports to substantiate the request and

department s | invoices as proof of expenditure

ExXpectcd oniputsioithe srant

None

Pleasures takentoimprove performance

6.2 Conditional grants and earmarked funds received

The table/s below details the conditional grants and ear marked funds received during for the period | April
2019 to 31 March 2020.

Conditional Grant |: Human Settlements Development Grant
“Department which transferred the grant Human Settlements
Purpose of the grant i To provide funding for the creation of sustainable human settlements
Number of serviced sites to be completed. Number of housing units completed.
| Number of title deeds issued or properties transferred.
Actual Bl achiieved | 979 sites, 601 housing units & 171 title deeds
Amolint per amended DORA (R'000) | 451 059
Amount received (R/000) 451 059
Reasons ifamount as per DORA was not
receved
Amount spent by the department (R'000) | [EHNTE
it Doe e TG e s s aadis -] Invoices received after the cut-off date.

Expectedioutputsofelicgrant

Underspending
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IMBhiEoHRgMe chanisiby the Feceiving

department

Conditional Grant 2: Title Deed Restoration Grant

TDépartment which transferred thelgrant
Purpose ofithe crant

Expected outputs of the grant

Actual outputs achieved

Amount per amended DORA (R'000)
Amount received (R'000)

Reasons if amount as per DORA was not
neceived

Amount spent by the department (R'000)
Reasonsifor thefundsnSpent By the Cntity
Monitoring mechanism by the réceiving
department

Conditional Grant 3: Extended Public Works Programme

Department which transferred the grant

Ptrposcotiiesrant

Expected outputs of the grant

Actual outputs achieved

Amount per amiended DORA (R'COD)

Amount received (R'000)

Reasonis ifamount as per DORA wasnot

received

Amount spent by the department (R'000)
‘Reasons for the funds unspent by the entity

Monitoring mechanism by the receiving
Ldepartmcny

DONOR FUNDS

Donor Funds Received

A compliance certificate signed by Municipal Manager.

The National Department of Human Settlements.

| To provide funding for the eradication of the Title Deeds registration backlog and

the professional fees associated with it, including beneficiary verification

Number of title deeds registered in favour of approved subsidy housing beneficiaries.
Number of title deeds issued to beneficiaries of government-subsidized housing (pre
1994, post 1994 up to 31 march 2014). Township proclaimed and register opened.
Social Facilitation and beneficiary confirmation (Dispute resolution/Beneficiary
tracking).

Institutional enhancement to municipalities and provinces in respect of property
registration.

| 404

10 790

10 790

nfa

10 790

None

Submission of monthly DORA Reports

Public Works

To increase the labour intensity of government-funded infrastructure construction
and maintenance projects through the use of labour-intensive methods

To create work for the EPWP target group; defined as: local, unemployed, low or
unskilled labour and such work must comply with the stipulations in the Ministerial
Determination

316

R2 046 000

R2 046 000

nfa

R2 046 000

None

Submission of monthly fabour stats by all contracts

The Department has not received any donor funding during the 2019/2020 financial year.

CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan

The Department has no capital investments or maintenance and asset management plan.




Annual Report for 2019/2020 Financial Year

Vote 09: Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs
Province of Northern Cape




Annual Report for 2019/2020 Financial Year
Vote 09: Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs
_f’rovince of Northern __Cﬂe_

I. INTRODUCTION

The Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs commits to upholding
good corporate governance as espoused in the King lll report and the Public Finance Management Act. We strive
to promote good management practices in the areas of Risk Management, Fraud Prevention, Ethics, Procurement
and Good Governance as well as to safeguard the department against any kind of misconduct or fraud

2. RISK MANAGEMENT

Section 38(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA requires the Accounting Officer to ensure that the institution has and maintain
effective, efficient and transparent systems of risk management. The Public Sector Risk Management Framework
gives effect to this section and provide inter alia for processes of Risk Management.

The unit conducted the 2019/2020 annual risk assessment as well as quarterly risk reviews to determine the
effectiveness of its risk management strategy and to identify new and emerging risks.

Quarterly Risk Management Committee (RMC) meetings as per the RMC charter are being conducted to discuss
the outcomes of the risk assessment and -reviews and to advice management on the overall system of risk
management and the mitigation of unacceptable levels of risk. A risk mitigation plan has also been developed and
is being updated quarterly after each risk review session. All senior managers also serve on the RMC, which gives
them greater insight into the risks facing the department.

A functional Audit Committee serves the Department at least four times a year and a standing agenda item for
the audit committee meetings is risk management. Risk management includes the changes on the Risk register and
reports and they are being discussed in detail by the audit committee and management are required to report on
recommendations made by the audit committee.

Risk Management Champions has been appointed in each programme and they are adding value to the Risk
Management process by providing guidance and support to manage the problematic risks and risks of traversal
nature that require a multiple participant approach.

3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

The Department has an approved fraud and anti-corruption policy and strategy in place, which is further
supplemented by a fraud and anti-corruption plan with planned action and clearly defined outcomes. The plan also
provides for mechanisms to report fraud and corruption. The Department also has a whistle blowing policy in
place.

The Department however does not have a dedicated unit responsible for these functions, and activities cuts
across the Internal Inspectorate and Labour Relations units.

4. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Al officials in the Financial Management Chief Directorate are required to declare any interest on the Declaration
of Financial Disclosure forms, as well as Senior Managers, Deputy Directors and OSD officials. These officials are
further subjected to vetting and security clearance.

5. CODE OF CONDUCT

The need exists to provide guidelines to employees with regard to their relationship with the legislature, political
and executive office-bearers, other employees and the public and to indicate the spirit in which employees should
perform their duties, what should be done to avoid conflicts of interests and what is expected of them in terms
of their personal conduct in public and private life.

In order to give practical effect to Chapter 10 of the Constitution of South African, which requires a Public Service
that is:
" Governed by the democratic values and principles of the Constitution;

CEIC Sy *

—_——

L. 2
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' maintaining and promoting a high standard of professional ethics;

. promoting efficient, economic and effective use of resources;

] orientated towards development;

] delivering services impartially, fairly, equitably and without bias;

' responding to people’s needs and encouraging public participation in policy matters;

" accountable for its actions;

. transparent by providing the public with timely, accessible and accurate information;

. cultivating good human resource management and career development practices to maximize human
potential;

" broadly representative of the South African people, with employment and personnel management practices
based on ability, objectivity, fairness, and the need to redress the imbalances of the past;

Ll the Department is adhering to the Public Service Code of Conduct.

The Code acts as a guideline to employees as to what is expected of them from an ethical point of view, both in
their individual conduct and in their relationship with others. Compliance with the Code can be expected to
enhance professionalism and help to ensure confidence in the Public Service.

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is:

] To serve as a brief description of the Department’s core values - equity, integrity, development, team work,
accountability and efficiency;

n To provide a framework for identifying conduct that is ethical and acceptable for the employees and officials
of the Department who act as its agents at all levels.

. To create a context for the ethical use of authority, to support all efforts aimed at curbing moral
degeneration.

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The Department complies with all the regulations as per the Occupational Health and Safety Act.

PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES
RECOMRIENTatONII S (D eps | =

APP and Budget 2019/2020
o | “The need is to address the slow progress with conveyancers. Historically,
two firms received 80% of all instructions. To improve the rate of
registrations the following has been done:

e Letters sent to the two firms

¢ Meetings held with the two firms

o Meeting held with the HOD and two firms

® 54 conveyancers appointed to the panel

Supply chain process underway to hand out new instructions to firms on
the panel, excluding the two firms mentioned above.

If the two firms mentioned above, fail to make drastic in roads to the
registrations, HOD indicated to terminate the appointments.

| In February 2016, the department adopted Guidelines for the Allocation
of housing opportunities created through the National Housing
Programmes to facilitate a fair, equitable, transparent and inclusive
selection and housing subsidy application approval process.

Accelerate the roll-out of the title deed
restoration programme

The guideline is the policy framework to manage an existing electronic
system known as the National Housing Needs Register. The National
Housing Needs Register replaces and nullifies all the waiting list systems
that were widely implemented by municipalities through South Africa. It is
a reliable, fair and transparent web-based system that captures the
different housing needs in all municipalities. Once captured on the system,

Review the system used in allocating and
distributing government-built houses and also put
mechanisms in place to address the housing back

log in theprovince. . . . . Lo
g P information is electronically communicated to beneficiaries through the

short message service (SMS).

The system is key to the allocation process of housing opportunities to
qualifying beneficiaries. Municipalities are required to allocate housing
opportunities only from the National Housing Needs Register. No other
system may be used to allocate housing opportunities.
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The system is not a waiting list at all. It only registers and manages
housing demand. Registration on the system does not necessarily equate
to qualification for any housing opportunities. It allows Government to
determine and manage housing needs.

Beneficiaries only graduate to Housing Subsidy System (HSS) upon
approval of a specific housing opportunity and through a detailed process
as per the Guidelines for the Allocation of housing opportunities created
through the National Housing Programmes.

Currently, there is no need for review or revision of the system as it is
successfully implemented. The key challenge is implementation of the
system in municipalities. However, the department does not approve
projects or housing opportunities without compliance with the Guidelines
for the Allocation of housing opportunities created through the National
Housing Programmes and National Housing Needs Register.

Once these are communicated to the Programme, responses will be
provided in order to comply. It is also important that the resolutions be
Put measures in place to ensure compliance to | communicated once taken to allow the programme sufficient time to
House Resolutions include these in the work plans of the different directorates. The challenge
is that if these are not communicated on time, these cannot be included in
work plans and present a challenge to report against these

Department supported 8 municipalities with project management including
planning, reporting and technical support. The municipalities that were
supported are:

Ubuntu Municipality,

Thembelihle Municipality,

Siyancuma Municipality,

Kai 'Garib Municipality,

Tsantsabane Municipality,

Kgatelopele Municipality,

Dawid Kruiper Municipality, and

Dikgatlong Municipality.

Richtersveld, Tsantsabane and Magareng Municipalities are placed on cost
re-imbursement plan due to issues such as use of grants for operations,
poor planning and technical issues. This is a continuous arrangement until
| the transferring officer (National CoGTA) is satisfied with the performance
| and grant management of these municipalities.

[

Furthermore, the department is currently assisting Magareng Municipality
to resolve the water crisis in lkhutseng by ensuring that the current
allocation is channelled to activities that are contributing towards the
resolution.

Intervene and assist municipalities that are struggling
to spend their Municipal Infrastructure Grant | District infrastructure Forums were convened in the following districts:
allocations, especially on areas of financial reporting | Frances Baard District Infrastructure Forum,

and technical skill such as engineers John Taolo Gaetsewe District Infrastructure Forum,

Namakwa District Infrastructure Forum,

Pixley ka Seme District Infrastructure Forum, and

ZF Mgcawu District Infrastructure Forum

These objectives of the forums are to assess, analyse and assist
municipalities with technical and project management issues collaboratively.
The forum is inclusive of all service delivery role players, including MISA and
DWS. The Provincial MIG also convened Management Information System
with all municipalities in order to address project capturing, monitoring and
reporting challenges during October 2019.

MIG expenditure is compliance and quality based, and municipal
performance or expenditure changes drastically within limited space of time.
Municipalities that were doing well in the past three months or year can
become the worst performing in a snap due to non-compliance,

The Infrastructure directorate in the department is under capacitated and
cannot assist or support all municipalities at once due to limited resources,
including human capacity. The cost containment measures are worsening
the situation since it cannot provide hands-on support to municipalities and
verify work done. MISA is only assisting 15 municipalities out of the 26.
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Support and supervise municipalities in intensifying
intergovernmental relations with all relevant
stalkeholder departments in order to respond to the
proliferation of informal settlements in the province

Continuously assist municipalities to improve their
audit outcomes through targeted support and
regular engagements

Forge a relationship with Provincial Treasury to
facilitate integrated planning in terms of support
rendered to municipalities with poor audit
outcomes, with an intervention plan in place for each
municipality towards assisting with a clean audit
outcome

In respect of the Provincial Disaster Management
Plan the department is required to develop a project
plan with all relevant stakeholders for submission to
the Legislature so that progress in respect thereof
can be monitored and evaluated

Promote equal opportunities and fair treatment in
employment through elimination of unfair
discrimination in order to ensure equitable
representation especially at senior management
level

m*

There is a challenge wnth munlmpalltles complying with MIG conditions.
They are not adhering to the planning and reporting timelines, changing of
priority lists and poor or late response to comments on projects
registration processes. All these delayed the project readiness and
implementation, which contribute to poor expenditures and service
delivery. Specific support will be given to municipalities that are currently
spending under 60% of their transferred allocations to minimize the risks of
them losing allocations during the re-allocation process.
The proliferation of informal settlements in the province has a direct link to
the fact that:
Municipalities do not have Town Planners in their employ,
Municipalities have been advised by the department that their Spatial
Development Frameworks (SDF's) and Spatial Development Plans (SDP’s)
are either outdated or not in place. SDF and SDP of a municipality will
earmark future developments approved by Council. These should become
bylaws of the municipalities and these spaces should be communicated to
the community via Ward Meetings, Ward Committees, etc. The Housing
administration at the municipality should then facilitate a process whereby
citizens come and apply for an erf to occupy in line with the housing needs
register. This will ensure that the criteria for receiving a BNG house is
applied. The municipality can then allocate applicants serviced erven if they
are available. If serviced erven are not available, the municipality will be able
to provide the basic services like mobile toilets and possibly JoJo tanks
water. This will go a long way in assisting municipalities in planning for
township establishment. Council can then decide on a monthly fee to cover
the logistics for removal of the buckets and provision of water for these
settlements, thereby registering owners on municipal database for payment
of the services. Those that occupy land outside the SDP can be removed
as it was gazetted utilising its bylaws. Then can then be requested to apply
for an erf.
The roll out of shared services like town planning, legal services and internal
audit by District Municipalities will assist local municipalities who do not
have the capacity to perform these.
This matter should be addressed in the roll out of the new district
development model
Support will be provided, but the municipalities must implement
recommendations made to address matters identified by the AG.
Municipalities must address findings from the prior year as part of the
implementation of their Audit Action Plans. The Accounting Officers of
municipalities must be held accountable for the audit outcomes of the
municipalities, by Councils including the following:
e  Reviewing information submitted to the AG to avoid misstatements in
their AFS,
o  Compliance with regulatory requirements, including predetermined
objectives,
¢ Build municipal capacity to reduce reliance on consultants
Once these measures are in place can we see an improvement in the audit
outcomes, Councils must also ensure that consequence management are
implemented to turn the situation around in municipalities.
The two departments have concluded a MoU to cooperate. The Office of
the DG in the province has revived the Operation Clean Audit Committee
to look at how to assist all District Municipalities and municipalities in the
main towns in the districts to move towards clean audit. The success of this
will depend on the municipalities implementing recommendations made and
Councils holding them accountable. It is also important that Councils play
their oversight role effectively, including filling vacant posts of Municipal
Managers (MMs) and Managers accountable to the MMs

A detailed report on the implementation of the Provincial Disaster
Management Plan was submitted.

| The department is utilising the Provincial Recruitment and Selection Policy.

The policy only outlines the framework that departments in the Northern
Cape Provincial Administration must adhere and follow to ensure fair and
equitable recruitment, selection and appointment of potential candidates.
The policy is also encouraging that advertising vacant posts should reach as
far as possible the entire pool of potential applicants, especially persons
historically disadvantaged and persons with disability. The policy also
provides for the selection committee to make a recommendation on the

suitability of a candidate after considering information based on valid
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methods that are free

considering the department’s employment equity plan. The department has

also decided to ensure that the equity representative is always part of the

selection committee.

The Department is applying reasonable accommodation measures for

people from designated groups.

Reasonable accommodation policy in draft format

Development and training of designated staff (including skills development)

In the process of finalizing consultations so as to submit the EE Plan for

2020-2022

Affirmative action measures included in EE Plan and Policy

EE Policy in place

Implementing the HOD'S 8 Principles

Diversity Management is included in HOD'S Performance Agreement

Due to lack of internal capacity, the function has been centralized reporting
Develop a project management plan to ensure that | to Head Office with regular meetings on Mondays to manage poor
targets set are achievable, both in Co-operative | performing contractors. This has assisted greatly with coordination and
Governance and Human Settlements implementation of the Recovery Plan to such an extent that grant
expenditure and progress has significantly improved.
In February 2016, the department adopted Guidelines for the Allocation of
housing opportunities created through the National Housing Programmes
to facilitate a fair, equitable, transparent and inclusive selection and housing
subsidy application approval process.

The guideline is the policy framework to manage an existing electronic
system known as the National Housing Needs Register. The National
Housing Needs Register replaces and nullifies all the waiting list systems that
were widely implemented by municipalities through South Africa. It is a
reliable, fair and transparent web-based system that captures the different
housing needs in all municipalities. Once captured on the system,
information is electronically communicated to beneficiaries through the
short message service (SMS).

The system is key to the allocation process of housing opportunities to
qualifying beneficiaries. Municipalities are required to allocate housing
Put mechanisms in place to address the poor | opportunities only from the National Housing Needs Register. No other
administration of the housing beneficiary lists by | system may be used to allocate housing opportunities.

municipalities

The system is not a waiting list at all. It only registers and manages housing
demand. Registration on the system does not necessarily equate to
qualification for any housing opportunities. It allows Government to
determine and manage housing needs.

Beneficiaries only graduate to Housing Subsidy System (HSS) upon approval
of a specific housing opportunity and through a detailed process as per the
Guidelines for the Allocation of housing opportunities created through the
National Housing Programmes.

Currently, there is no need for review or revision of the system as it is
successfully implemented. The key challenge is implementation of the
system in municipalities. However, the department does not approve
projects or housing opportunities without compliance with the Guidelines
for the Allocation of housing opportunities created through the National
Housing Programmes and National Housing Needs Register.

8. SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

|

|| Annual Report 2018/19

| Develop a project management plan to ensure that targets set are achievable, both in Co-operative
Governance and Human Settlements

Due to lack of internal capacity, the function has been centralized reporting to Head Office with regular meetings
on Mondays to manage poor performing contractors. This has assisted greatly with coordination and
implementation of the Recovery Plan to such an extent that grant expenditure and progress has significantly
| improved.

Partially achieved against planned target to date
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Resolution No: 2
Subject Annual Report 2018/19

Details Put mechanisms in place to address the poor administration of the housing beneficiary lists by municipalities

In February 2016, the department adopted Guidelines for the Allocation of housing opportunities created through
the National Housing Programmes to facilitate a fair, equitable, transparent and inclusive selection and housing
subsidy application approval process.

The guideline is the policy framework to manage an existing electronic system known as the National Housing
Needs Register. The National Housing Needs Register replaces and nullifies all the waiting list systems that were
widely implemented by municipalities through South Africa. It is a reliable, fair and transparent web-based system
that captures the different housing needs in all municipalities. Once captured on the system, information is
electronically communicated to beneficiaries through the short message service (SMS).

The system is key to the allocation process of housing opportunities to qualifying beneficiaries. Municipalities are
required to allocate housing opportunities only from the National Housing Needs Register. No other system may
be used to allocate housing opportunities.

The system is not a waiting list at all. It only registers and manages housing demand. Registration on the system
does not necessarily equate to qualification for any housing opportunities. It allows Government to determine and
manage housing needs.

Beneficiaries only graduate to Housing Subsidy System (HSS) upon approval of a specific housing opportunity and
through a detailed process as per the Guidelines for the Allocation of housing opportunities created through the
National Housing Programmes.

Currently, there is no need for review or revision of the system as it is successfully implemented. The key challenge
is implementation of the system in municipalities. However, the department does not approve projects or housing
opportunities without compliance with the Guidelines for the Allocation of housing opportunities created through
the National Housing Programmes and National Housing Needs Register.

Resolved

(S INo) | Partially achieved against planned target to date

[Resolution No. 3
Subje | Annual Report 2018/19

Develop a project plan with an implementation plan that depicts all relevant stakeholders in terms of MIG

| spending on municipal level and factor into the plan monitoring and evaluation

| The department has established District Infrastructure Fora in all the 5 districts, which comprise of the District
| Municipalities, local municipalities, National CoGTA, National Public Works, Roads and Public Works, CoGHSTA
and Provincial Treasury. At the fora challenges faced by municipalities are discussed and some advice provided to
municipalities.

National CoGTA has deployed engineers in the province to support municipalities. These District Technical Support
Teams to strengthen the capacity of identified low and medium capacity municipalities. Municipalities supported by
MISA are: Kareeberg, Thembelihle, Siyancuma, Renosterberg, Tsantsabane, Dawid Kruiper and Gamagara. MISA
further assist municipalities on an ad-hoc basis.

PBRetails

Response by

department The department has entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with DBSA on 10 September 2019, whereby the
| DBSA is to support the department with the establishment of the PMU for a period of 5 years. DBSA has committed
to procure and contract suitable technical resources and deploy them to the PMU. CoGHSTA must take full
ownership for the establishment and management of the PMU and become administratively accountable for the
municipal capital programmes where DBSA will be providing funding and non-funding support. The Programme
Steering Committee (PSC) was established on | | December 2019 to oversee the PMU. This comprise of COGHSTA,
DBSA, Office of the Premier, Provincial Treasury, Department of Water and Sanitation, Department of
Environmental Affairs, National Public Works, Roads and Public Works, Sol Plaatje Municipality and District
Municipalities.

No
Resglition No: 4
ISiibject | Annual Report 2018/19

Promote equal opportunities and fair treatment in employment through elimination of unfair discrimination in order
| to ensure equitable representation especially at senior management level in all municipalities in the province
Municipalities are continually advised on the filling of senior management posts and the requirement to implement
Kespanse by the 50:50 representation of women in section 56 posts. Furthermore, this is one of the KPA against which the
department department is implementing its APP. However, the prerogative of appointing senior managers at municipalities is
| that of the municipalities.

Details

Resolved
(Yes/No)

| Partially achieved against planned target to date
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| “Establish an integrated planning forum with relevant stakeholders facilitating Inter-Governmental Relations and

policy development around planning of bulk services and delivery toward integrated human settlements

| The Department regularly engages with the Department of Water and Sanitation and Department of Environmental

and Nature Conservation to align all our planning efforts with regards to infrastructure and environmental
authorizations. However, the Department will resuscitate the Planning and Alignment Forum, in partnership that
was established previously to deal with all the built environment challenges that impact on the delivery of human

| settlements.

No

[

Annual Report 2018/19

| The department must develop and implement proper systems of record management which would provide for the

maintenance of information and the consistent collection of information from other entities and submit quarterly

| progress reports to the committee

The department has an approved File Plan and been circulated to alt officials. The Records Manager has on
numerous occasions requested officials to send through documentation for proper filing, safekeeping and
maintenance thereof. The Records Manager will concentrate in the next quarter on all programmes as they make

| use of empire registries in their offices.

No

| 7

Annual Report 2018/19

The department must submit a comprehensive report on reasons for its lack of consequence management on poor
performance and transgressions, provide reasons why no investigations were done on unauthorized and irregular
expenditure and provide the committee with a plan to ensure accountability and implement consequence
management for non-compliance with key legislation

The internal investigation report on irregular expenditure was forwarded to the Auditor General doing the audit
of 2018/2019, but was not accepted, the reasons cited by the Auditor General was independency of investigation
due to fact that the Department appointed the consultancy firm. The Department has started the condonation

| process of irregular expenditure and reports will be submitted to Treasury for condonation.

No

8

Annual Report 2018/19

The department must use reports of the internal audit function and external audit committee to identify controls
that are not operating effectively and implement its recommendations to prevent material misstatements.

The Department prepares the Annual Financial Statements as per the modified cash standard guidelines on an annual
basis with clear intensions of no material misstatements. The challenge with the Auditor General is the issue of
differences in the interpretation of the guidelines. The implementation strategy that the Department applied during
2019/2020 was to compile more qualitative quarterly interim financial statements.

Yes

9

Annual Report 2018/19

| The department must monitor the implementation of its audit action plan and submit quarterly reports to the

committee

The Department does comply with the implementation of the Audit Action Plan and reports are submitted to the
Audit Committee on a quarterly basis for discussion.

Partially achieved against planned target to date

10

Annual Report 2018/19

The department must submit all progress reports within 30 days after tabling of this report

Duly noted by the Department and will adhere to this in future.

Yes
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10.

1.2

PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS

INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

A need to assess the control environment within the Department arose because of the recurring findings from
the Auditor General and Internal Audit.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

Internal audit

The Internal Audit service has been performed by the Northern Cape Provincial Treasury‘s “Provincial internal
Audit Service”. The function was setup under section 38(1)a()(i) and section 76(4)(e) of the PFMA as a shared
function for the Northern Cape Provincial Administration, and in terms of paragraph 3.2.3 of the Treasury
Regulations. The unit fulfills an independent assurance function. The Northern Cape Provincial Treasury
contracted PwC to execute the internal audit service for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020.

The internal audit unit follows a risk-based audit approach in providing management and the audit committee with
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management, and internal control processes. The
internal audit is guided by an internal audit charter, approved by the Audit Committee and performs its functions
as provided in the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and the internal audit charter.

The internal audit unit compiles a rolling three-year risk-based plan and prepares an annual plan after taking
consideration of the risks facing the entity, strategic objectives, the entity’s mandate, audit issues and inputs by
management. The audit committee approves the Internal Audit Plan for implementation.

The internal audit reviews performed for the financial year under review, were all in line with the approved annual
audit plan and are detailed in the Audit Committee Annual report.

Internal audit findings were communicated timely and management implemented measures to mitigate the risks.
Significant matters identified during the year were reported to the Audit Committee.

Audit Committee
Throughout the year under review, the Audit Committee operated in terms of an approved Audit Committee

Charter, which was the committee’s approved terms of reference. The Audit Committee comprise of three
external members and two internal members, all of whom are not employed at the Department.

The Audit Committee has, as part of its oversight responsibility on a quarterly basis, followed up on audit findings
to ensure that issues raised were addressed timely.

Further information relating to the Audit Committee, as required by the PFMA and Treasury Regulations is
included in the Audit Committee’s Report, which is incorporated in the annual report of the entity.

The Audit Committee members have been appointed with effect from | December 2017. The Audit Committee
exists of five members in total. Two internal members and three external members, of which two external
members were reappointed to serve for the second term. The Audit Committee consisted of the members listed
hereunder and met five times as per its approved meeting schedule:

" Mr. Kgoale Maja Master in Business Leadership | External | O1/01/2015- |
(MBL) | 30/11/2020
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E o T - " Noi
|! Name | Qu OIS IfR eappolit Lo il
Mr. Mava Dada CA (SA) External 01/01/2015- 3outof5
30/11/2020
Mr. Velile Pangwa CA (SA) External 01/1272017- | 4outof§
| 3071172020
Mr. Roscoe Miller Bachelor of Commerce Honours | Internal 01/12/2017- Joutof5
Northern Cape Tourism Accounting 30/11/2020
Authority
Mr. Daryll Christians Honours degree in Education | Internal [ 01701/2015- Joutof5
NC Department of Economic 30/11/2020
Development and Tourism |

In terms of the PFMA, section 77(b), an Audit Committee must meet at least twice a year. In addition, Treasury
Regulations, section 3.1.16 provides that an Audit Committee must meet at least annually with the Auditor
General. The Audit Committee met four times during the year in compliance with the PFMA and also met with
the Auditor General.

12. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee is pleased to present its report for the financial year ended 3| March 2020. The Audit
Committee has been functional throughout the financial year.

12.1 REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR 2019/20

The Audit Committee has adopted formal terms of reference, as its Audit Committee Charter. The audit
committee has discharged its responsibilities in terms of its charter as contained therein, in line with the
requirements of section 38(1)(a) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13..

12.2 THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The Audit Committee is satisfied as to the effectiveness of the internal audit function during the year and that the
internal audit activity has to a large extent addressed the risks pertinent to the Department. Our review of the
findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based on the risk assessments conducted in the Department
revealed certain weaknesses, which were then raised with the Department.

+ Some information regarding the functionality of ward committees held, job creation opportunities for the
youth, and the number of municipalities supported to respond to community concerns was not provided during

the audit of municipal public participation.

= The system description or standard operating procedures were not developed for Municipal Performance and
Monitoring.

* Risk management reports have not always been actioned.

e Information reported on Programme 3 — Cooperative Governance, was not always valid, accurate and
complete.

»  Human Settlement Development grants as well as Procurement and Contract Management remains a
concern at the Department, due to irregular expenditure incurred at the Department.

Management has however developed an action plan to address the issues over a period of time. The Audit

Committee monitored the implementation of the plan during the audit committee meetings.

The internal audit activity also maintains a combined assurance framework and plan, which were developed in

collaboration with the departmental risk management unit and the Auditor General. The plan has been useful in
ensuring that assurance is placed at all identified high-risk areas.
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12,3 In-Year Management and Quarterly Report

The Audit Committee takes note of the expertise, resources and experience of the entity’s finance function.

The Department has been reporting monthly and quarterly to Provincial Treasury as is required by the PFMA. We
had engagements with the Department’s management to provide clarity on completeness and quality of the
monthly and quarterly reports during our quarterly meetings and officials of the Department were able to clarify
areas of concern raised by the Audit Committee.

The Department also consistently reported a need for additional funding.
12.4 Evaluation of Financial Statements
The Audit Commiittee has:

e reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements prepared by the department with the AGSA
and the Accounting Officer for inclusion in the Annual Report;

» Reviewed the AGSA Audit Report;

» Reviewed the AGSA’s Management Report and management's responses thereto;

» Reviewed the Department’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;

* Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit; and

» Reviewed the outcome of the evaluation of the AFS.

12,5 Report to Executive Authority

On a quarterly basis the Audit Committee writes a report to the Executive Authority which highlights the issues
that needs attention or improvement within the entity’s performance.
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The Audit Committee met with the Executive Council of the province during the year.

12.6 Auditor’s General Report
The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclusion of the Auditor General Report on the annual financial
statements, and is of the opinion that the audited financial statements be accepted and read together with the
report of the Auditor-General.

12.7 Conclusion
The Audit Committee wishes to express its appreciation to the management of the Department, AGSA and

Provincial Internal Audit for the co-operation and information they have provided to fulfil our mandate and enable
us to compile this report.

Mr. K Maja
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Northern Cape Department of Co-operative Governance Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs

Date: 31 july 2020
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INTRODUCTION

The Minister for the Public Service and Administration has prescribed the information contained in this part of the
annual report for all departments in the public service.

OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES

The Department intend to remain the employer of choice by taking care of the most important resource, namely
staff, by means of interventions such as skills development, employee health, wellness assistance and provisioning
of tools of trade. Competent staff members to deliver outstanding performance.

Employee performance management: The Department implemented Performance Management System for all staff
members on salary levels |-16 for the 2019/20 financial year. The EPMDS unit compiled non-compliance and poor
performance reports. The HOD made recommendation on the report. Investigations by Labour Relations and
EPMDS are underway, and a final report on the findings will be submitted to HOD. During the assessment
process, nine (9) members of the Senior Management Service (SMS) classified as “critical occupation”, received
cash bonuses. Seven (7) received pay progression only. One (I} SMS member is on last notch and did not received
pay progression or cash bonus. One (1) SMS member was disqualified due to non-compliance.

Training and Development: Annually, Branches are requested to submit training and development needs that will
assist in achieving the Annual Performance Plan (APP) and the Operational Plans (OP) and future plans. The
Department, in the context of the submitted developmental needs, managed to train one hundred and eighty (180)
officials. Cost containment is a major hampering factor concerning Training & Development.

20 Officials were awarded bursaries to study in 2020. The total officials on the bursary programme is 53. HRD
concluded processes to pay Intern Stipends that are in-line with the Determination on Interns, from | April 2020,

Workforce planning and key strategies to attract and recruit a skilled and capable workforce: The Department is
challenged to increase capacity due to financial constraints. Posts are only filled when the incumbent vacates,
resigns or is transferred to another Department. The Department aligns the staff establishment with the
organisational structure, monitor the implementation of the HRP, and submitted the HRPIR. Filling of vacant posts
is the biggest challenge in the Department due to non-availability of funds.

Employee wellness programmes: The sub-programme, through its programme Diversity and Employee Health and
Wellness, provided employee health and wellness support such as health screening, health education, financial
wellness and HIV and AIDS voluntary testing and counselling. The programme also partnered with the South
African Blood Services (SANBS), Government Employees Medical Scheme (GEMS) and other health care providers
to provide quality wellness service to employees.

HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

Personnel related expenditure

The following tables summarize the final audited personnel related expenditure by programme and by salary
bands. In particular, it provides an indication of the following:

8 amount spent on personnel

8 amount spent on salaries, overtime, homeowner’s allowances and medical aid.
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Table 3.1.1 Personnel expenditure by programme for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Professional | Personngl

AvErage

Total Personnel Trainin, and special || expenditure 2
Programme expenditure Nexpend;ture e:penditfre ser?i'ces agi 2008 pgrsonnell S
(R'000) (RI600)  expenditure total A AO9
(R'000) expenditure { )

Administration 161 377 0 0
Human Settlements 511824 45267 0 0 8 520
Cooperative Governance 154 298 123841 0 0 80 399
Traditional Affairs 21 902 6 082 0 0 73 146
Total as on Financial
System (BAS) 849 402 281 248 0 0 33 399

Table 3.1.2 Personnel costs by salary band for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
Personnel % of total ||~ Average personnel
Sataryhand Expenditure personnel cost peremployee

(R'D00) cost Empioyees (R'000)

. of

Abnormal Appointment 1287 05 3 429000
Contract (Levels 13-16) 8474 3 8 1059250
Contract (Levels 3-5) 867 0.3 13 66 692
Contract (Levels 6-8) 3862 1.4 12 321 833
Contract (Levels 9-12) 9628 34 14 687714
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 153 972 54 423 365 322
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 67 440 28.7 95 709 895
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 2316 0.8 15 154 400
Periodical Remunerations 449 02 64 7016
Senior management (Levels |3-16) 22 |57 8 15 | 477 133
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 10 795 4 43 251 047
Total 281 248 99 705 399 726

Table 3.1.3 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by programme for the

period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Home Owners =
Allowance HcdicalbAid

Salaries Overtime | HOA as Tiode s gl

Salaries Overtime

Programme

LAmoupt [ asaciol | Amount a5 a7 0F Amount a Sint Amount 2% of
(R’000) | “petsonncl | N (RI000) | personnel (R'000) | personnel @ (R'000) personnel
costs costs bihidclnd
Administration 0 3 5
Cooperative 99 760 8 0 0 4902 4 8029 6
Governance
Human Settlements 38 321 84 0 0 1221 3 2 121 5
Traditional Affairs 14 287 88 0 0 283 2 540 3
Total 232 547 82 0 0 9 740 3 15333 5

Table 3.1.4 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by salary band for the
period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020

0 )
@ 278 A1
- o DA 4 3
=8 hia » 2 S0 : 4 A3 VoD : O 2 Va0 : 0 1% 0
RGO pe 0) Rt} GO DERS0 e sttt s <. eIt
Abnormal Appointment 1 286 100 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract {Levels [3-16) 8 473 980 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 3-5) 867 100 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 6-8) 386l 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 9-12) 9 607 95 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled production 121 767 79 0 o| 657 4| 1532 8
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision
(Levels 9-12) 57 128 84 0 0 | 505 2 2 461 4
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1712 74 0 0 19 5 281 12
Senior management
(Levels 13-16) 19 056 83 0 0 998 4 154 0.7
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 8342 77 0 0 543 5 905 8
Total 232 547 82 0 0 9740 3 15333 5
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3.2

e

Employment and Vacancies
The tables in this section summarize the position with regard to employment and vacancies.

The following tables summarize the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy
rate, and whether there is any staff that is additional to the establishment.

This information is presented in terms of three key variables:
8 programme

§ salary band

§ critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Departments have identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. In terms of current regulations, it is
possible to create a post on the establishment that can be occupied by more than one employee. Therefore, the
vacancy rate reflects the percentage of vacant (not filled) posts.

Table 3.2.1 Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2019

Niimbeyof

Number | plimberol

Programme apns:cswc;r:j O posts vaéilq eniployeesadditicnal
PREEYS! filled to the establishment
_ establishiment ) IR :

Administration 195
Cooperative Governance 325 308 52 4
Human Settlement 101 83 17.8 6
Traditional Affairs 53 50 5.7 3
Total 698 636 8.9 21

Table 3.2.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2019

Contracts (Levels 13-16) 4 4 0 2
Contracts (Level 1-2) 0 0 0 |
Contracts (Levels 3-5) 2 2 0 |
Contracts (Levels 6-8) [ 6 0 5
Contracts (Levels 9-12) 14 14 0 10
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 452 432 44 2
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 131 100 237 0
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 16 15 6.3 0
Senior and Top management (Levels |3-16) 24 19 20.8 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 48 13 10.4 0
Total 698 636 8.9 21

Table 3.2.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations as on 31 March 2020

NEmEErOL Numberoy
RO On ofiposts ety enployees additional

approved Rate k 3
establishment. | hited L to the_es_tabhshment

Number

Critical occupation

Administrative Related 12
All Artisans in the Building Metal Machinery etc. | 0 100 0
Architects Town and Traffic Planners | | 0 0
Cartographic Surveying and Related Technicians 2 2 0 0
Cleaners in Offices Workshops Hospitals etc. 19 19 0 0
Client Inform Clerks (Switchboard/Reception/ Information 5 3 40 0
Clerks)

Communication and Information Related | | 0 0
Community Development Workers 15 Il 26.7 |
Engineering Sciences Related 2 1 50 1]
Engineers and Related Professionals 4 I 75 I
Finance and Economics Related 4 4 0 0
Financial and Related Professionals 3 2 333 0
Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 38 33 13.2 2
Food Services Aids and Waiters 3 3 0 0
General Legal Administration & Related Professionals 1 | 0 0
Human Resources & Organisational Development & 2 I 50 i
Related Professionals
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3.3

Critical occupation

Number of
postson

approved
establishment

Number
OLposts
filled

Vacancy
Rate

Number of

employees additional

ta the cstablishnient

Human Resources Clerks 1 0
Human Resources Related 34 32 59 8
Information Technology Related 2 2 0 0
Inspectors of Apprentices Works and Vehicles 16 13 18.8 5
Legal Related 2 | 50 0
Library Mail and Related Clerks 8 8 0 0
Logistical Support Personnel 5 3 40 0
Material-Recording and Transport Clerks 3 3 0 0
Messengers Porters and Deliverers 7 7 0 |
Other Administrative & Related Clerks and Organisers 255 250 2 4
Other Administrative Policy and Related Officers 62 58 6.5 0
Other Information Technology Personnel 4 4 0 [
Other Occupations 24 23 48 [
Risk Management and Security Services 4 4 0 0
Secretaries & Other Keyboard Operating Clerks 14 13 7.1 0
Security Officers 2 2 0 I
Senior Managers 33 24 27.3 6
Trade Quality Controllers 4 3 25 0
Total 712 638 10.4 45

Filling of SMS Posts

The tables in this section provide information on employment and vacancies as it relates to members of the Senior
Management Service by salary level. It also provides information on advertising and filling of SMS posts, reasons
for not complying with prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken.

Table 3.3.1 SMS post information as on 31 March 2020

Director-General/ Head of Department 0 0 0 0 0
Salary Level 16 I | 100 0 0
Salary Level 15 I | 100 0 0
Salary Level [4 4 2 50 2 50
Salary Level 13 20 12 60 8 40
Total 26 16 61.5 10 38.5

Table 3.3.2 SMS post nfomaion as on 30 September 2019

Total number .

Total

Total number

numbErof 7. of SMS 3 % of SMS posts
SHSEevel ;:\rl;fsunded SHMSiposts I postatilied PRaliay ts vacanltw
posts filled vacant
Director-General/ Head of Department 0 0 0 0 0
Salary Level 16 | 1 100 0 0
Salary Level 15 [ 1 100 0 0
Salary Level 14 4 2 50 2 50
Salary Level 13 20 13 65 7 35
Total 26 17 65 9 35

SMS Level

o monthSofbecomitg
vacant

None

Advertising
Number of vacancies
perilcveladvertisedi

Number of vacancies
pericvelitiicaint
monthsotbecoming

vacant

Table 3.3.3 Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
Filling of Posts
Number of vacancies per
fevetnotifilled e ionths
Buthlledin t2imonths
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Table 3.3.4 Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS - Advertised
within 6 months and filled within 12 months after becoming vacant for the period |
April 2019 to 31 March 2020

'Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months

Moratorium on filling of vacancies relating to budget constraints in the department

Reasons for vacancies noulilledwithin twelve months
Moratorium on filling of vacancies relating to budget constraints in the department

Table 3.3.5 Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for filling
SMS posts within 12 months for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
Reasonsiforvacancies notadyertised within Six months '
Moratorium on filling of vacancies relating to budget constraints in the department

Reasons for vacancies not filled Within'six months™
Moratorium on filling of vacancies relating to budget constraints in the department

Job Evaluation

Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in his or her
organisation. In terms of the Regulations, all vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher must be evaluated before they
are filled. The following table summarizes the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year under review.
The table also provides statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded.

Table 3.4.1 Job Evaluation by Salary band for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
' ‘Number | PostsUpgraded | Posts downgraded
OIIpoStS . Fataede |
on l:;;rls:’l;:r cvaldated % of % of posts
approved o by salary s ENUmMBER pOsEs Number
csEablists Evaluated | 4 nds evaluated Sulliatel

Salanyiband

Contracts (Band A) 7 0 0 | 0 0 0 0
Contracts (Level 1-2) | 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contracts (Levels 3-5) 13 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contracts (Levels 6-8) 12 0 0 0 100 0 0
Contracts (Levels 9-12) 14 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled production

(Levels 6-8) 449 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled supervision

(Levels 9-12) 128 0 0 0 0 0 0
Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 15 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service

Band A 18 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service 4 0 0 0 0 0 0
Band B

Senior Management Service

Band C | 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service

Band D | 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 49 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 712 0 0 0 0 0 0

The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their
post being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of posts upgraded since not all
employees are automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the posts upgraded could be vacant.

Table 3.4.2 Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded
for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
~  African  Asian "Coloured

Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0
Employees with a disability
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The following table summarizes the number of cases where remuneration bands exceeded the grade determined
by job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.

Table 3.4.3 Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation by
occupatlon for the perlod I April 2019 to 31 March 2020
Number of : Tl e

employees ]ob eva‘luatnon fevel Remuneratiomievel _ Reason for dewanon
Line function 0 0 0
Support function 0 0 0
Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job
evaluation
| Percentage of total employed

The following table summarizes the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.

Table 3.4.4 Profile of employees who have salary levels higher than those determined by job
evaluation fhe period I Apr 2019 to 31 March 2020

Coloured

Female 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0
Employees with a disability

Employment Changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates provide an
indication of trends in the employment profile of the department. The following tables provide a summary of
turnover rates by salary band and critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Table 3.5.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period | Aprll 2019 to 31 March 2020

=1ejtle rne LI

Contract Band A 4 3 0 8
Contracts (Levels 3-5) 2 11 0 0
Contracts (Levels 6-8) 7 9 2 28.6
Contracts (Levels 9-12) 14 9 9 64.3
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 432 2 I 25
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 100 0 4 4
Lower skilled ( Levels [-2) 15 0 0 0
Senior Management Service Bands A 14 0 3 214
Senior Management Service Bands B 3 0 0 0
Senior Management Service Bands C | 0 0 0
Senior Management Service Bands D I 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 43 0 0 0
Total 637 35 30 4.7

Table 3.5.2 Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period | April 2019 to 31 March
2020

Nirberer Appointments || Terminations and

Erigcalinecupation Employcesat hand transfersinto ) Sransiersioit of HiUEnover rate
1 April 2019 | tho department | the department

Administrative Related 6 10

All Artisans in the Building Metal Machinery etc. | 0 1 I00
Architects Town and Traffic Planners | 0 0 0
Cartographic Surveying and Related Technicians 2 0 0 0
Cleaners in Offices Workshops Hospitals etc. 19 0 0 0
Client Inform Clerks (Switchboard/Reception/ 5 0 2 40
Information Clerks)

Communication and Information Related 1 0 0 0
Community Development Workers 10 | 0 0
Engineering Sciences Related | 0 0 0
Engineers and Related Professionals 2 2 3 150
Finance and Economics Related 4 0 0 0
Financial and Related Professionals 4 0 0 0
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[l Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers

Numberof | [ Appointments

employees at
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andiEranstersiito

thedepartment

transfers out of

| therepdztment

"Terminationsand |

SRUEnGVeREates

Food Services Aids and Waiters

3

General Legal Administration & Related
Professionals

Human Resources Clerks

Human Resources Related

N

Information Technology Related

Inspectors of Apprentices Works and Vehicles

Legal Related

Library Mail and Related Clerks

Logistical Support Personnel

Material-Recording and Transport Clerks

Messengers Porters and Deliverers

N M| B N = N N | —|

—_—O O - O hOO| O O —

Other Administrative & Related Clerks and
Organisers

251

£

b (OlO|O|o|o|—o|o o O o0

Other Administrative Policy and Related
Officers

62

Other Information Technology Personnel

]

Other Occupations

25

Risk Management and Security Services

3

Secretaries & Other Keyboard Operating Clerks

13

Security Officer

Senior Managers

21

14.3

Trade Quality Controllers

3

noluno|lo|lo|— o o

Ololwo|loowol w

Total

637

W

(7

4.7

The table below identifies the major reasons why staff left the Department.

Table 3.5.3 Reasons why staff left th

e department for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020

OLa

¢

Death 3 10
Discharged due to ill-health | 3.3
Dismissal (misconduct) | 33
Expiry of contract 13 433
Resignation 10 333
Retirement 2 6.7
Total 30 100
Total number of employees who left as a % of total employment

Table 3.5.4 Promotions by critical occupation for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
| i, ' Saliiy level Notch

Pg’;‘;fof 3 prosression as
o GECofemployess
employees by by occupation

Brosressions
to another
notch within
aisalaryilevel

Eniployces | Promotions
at L Apnl £a ancther
20119 Isatavyicvel

O ecupation

| occupation

~ Administrative Related 0

Z\tllArtlsans in the Building Metal Machinery | 0 0 0 0
Appraisers-Valuers and Related Professionals | 0 0 2 200
Cartogr‘aphlc Surveying and Related 2 0 0 2 100
Technicians
g:aners in Offices Workshops Hospitals 19 0 0 18 94.7
Client Inform Clerks
(Switchboard/Reception/ Information Clerks) 5 0 0 3 1%
Communication and Information Related | 0 0 I 100
Community Development Workers 10 0 0 10 100
Engineering Sciences Related | 0 0 I 100
Engineering and Related Science 2 0 0 I 50
Finance and Economics Related 4 0 0 3 75
Financial and Related Professionals 4 0 0 2 50
Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 32 0 0 26 81.3
Food Services Aids and Waiters 3 0 0 2 66.7
General Legal Administration & Related

. | 0 0 0 0
Professionals
Human Resources Clerks | 0 0 0 0
Human Resources Related 23 0 0 22 95.7
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Occupation

Employees

at PADL|

BIOMOLIONS
Lo AnctheR
salary level

Salary level
PECINOEONS
asa %of
employees by
occupation

PIogEesSIons
LAROthCE
notch within
asalanyievel

progression as
a % of employees
by Dccupation

Information Technology Related 2 0 0

Insp.ectors of Apprentices Works and 12 0 0 v 533
Vehicles

Legal Related [ 0 0 1 100
Library Mail and Related Clerks 7 0 0 5 71.4
Logistical Support Personnel 4 0 0 2 50
Material-Recording and Transport Clerks 2 0 0 2 100
Messengers Porters and Deliverers 7 0 0 6 85.7
Other.Administrative & Related Clerks and 25 0 0 160 63.7
Organisers

Other Administrative Policy and Related 62 0 0 48 77.4
Officers

Other Information Technology Personnel 4 0 0 2 50
Other Occupations 25 0 0 0 0
Risk Management and Security Services 3 0 0 4 133.3
Secretaries & Other Keyboard Operating 13 0 0 13 100
Clerks

Security Officer | 0 0 | 100
Senior Managers 21 0 0 15 71.4
Trade Quality Controllers 3 0 0 3 100
Total 637 0 0 445 69.9

Table 3.5.5 Promotions by salary band for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Salary Band

Eployces
at | April
Z09

Ptonotons
to another
salary level

Salary bands
phomotcns
asa %of
Eimployeesiby
salary level

Biogressions
to another
notch within
asalary level

Notch progression .
asaxof

ehiploycesby
salapybands

Contract (Levels 13-16) 0 0

Contract (Levels 3-5) 2 0 0 0 0
Contract {Levels 6-8) 7 0 0 | 14.3
Contract {Levels 9-12) 14 0 0 | 7.10
Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8) 432 0 0 295 68.3
Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12) 100 0 0 83 83
Lower Skilled {Levels [-2) 15 0 0 14 93.3
Senior Management (Levels 13-16) 19 0 0 13 68.4
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 43 0 0 35 814
Total 637 0 0 445 69.9

3.6

Employment Equity

Table 3.6.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the

following occupational categories as on 31 March 2020
Male ||

E 3
Occupational catepory g =
2 -
& 0]
Clerks 79 51 | 0 104 72 0 4 311
Craft and related trades workers 5 3 0 2 4 2 0 0 16
Labourers and Related Workers 26 4 0 0 11 10 0 0 51
Professionals 16 8 0 1 30 6 0 1 62
Senior officials and managers 15 3 0 1 4 1 0 1 25
Service and sales workers 0 3 0 0 2 | 0 0 6
Technicians and associate professionals 59 18 | 3 60 21 0 5 167
Total 200 90 2 7| 215 | 13 0 11 638
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Table 3.6.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the

following occupational bands as on 31 March 2020
§ ' ~ Male

.,.,
o
3
=
m

Occupational band

Cofotited
Colcured
Indian
White

Contract (Senior Management), Permanent 6 | 0 I 0 0 0 0

Contract (Professionally Qualified), Permanent 6 3 0 I 4 0 0 0 14
Contract (Skilled Technical), Permanent 5 2 0 0 4 | 0 0 12
Contract (Semi-Skilled), Permanent 7 2 0 0 4 0 0 0 13
Pr.ofessionally qualified and experienced specialists and 38 12 0 3 23 14 0 5 95
mid-management

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making 20 2 0 0 15 5 0 | 43
Senior Management 7 | 0 0 3 | 0 1 13
Skilled technical and academically qualified workers,

junior management, supervisors, foreman and 107 65 2 2 159 84 0 4 423
superintendents

Top Management | | 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Unskilled and defined decision making 3 | 0 0 3 8 0 0 15
Total 200 90 2 71 215 113 0 11 638

Table 3.6.3 Recruitment for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
- Male

T
=
iy
o

Lccupationalband

Eofoured
Colotired
Indian

Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, | 0 .

S . 0 0 | 0 0 0 2
junior management, supervisors, foremen, Permanent

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Permanent

Contract (Professionally Qualified), Permanent 4 3 0 | | 0 0 0 9
Contract (Skilled Technical), Permanent 3 2 0 0 4 0 0 0 9
Contract (Semi-Skilled), Permanent [ | 0 0 4 0 0 0 [
Contract (Unskilled), Permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 14 6 0 1 10 0 0 0 31
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 3.6.4 Promotions for the period |1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020
i ) ~ Male

Occupational band

Colotred
| Coloured

eniorManemn Permanent

Pr.ofessmnally qualified and experienced specialists and 27 T 0 3 23 14 0 5 83
mid-management, Permanent

§kl!led technical and acaderrucally qualified workers, 56 15 2 0 120 64 0 3 295
junior management, supervisors, foreman, Permanent

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making, 14 2 0 0 13 4 0 2 35
Permanent

Unskilled and defined decision making, Permanent 3 [ 0 0 3 7 0 0 14
Contract (Professionally Qualified), Permanent 0 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 |
Contract (Skilled Technical), Permanent 0 0 0 0 | 0 0 0 |
Total 106 66 2 3| 164 90 0 [ 442
Employees with disabilities 4 5 0 0 4 0 0 0 13
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Table 3.6.5 Terminations for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Occupationatibatd

Cololred
Coloured

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making

Senior Management 1 | 0 0 0 1 0 0 3
Skilled technical and academically qualified workers,

junior management, supervisors, foreman and 3 2 0 0 2 3 0 | 11
superintendents

Total 4 3 0 0 2 4 0 [ 14
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 3.6.6 Disciplinary action for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020

DisciplinatydcHon

Cololired
Colodred

Final written warning 2 5
Written warning 5 | 6
Verbal Warning 5 7
Counselling, final written warning with one month’s
suspension without salary

Counselling, final written warning with three months’
suspension without salary

Demotion, final written warning with three months’
suspension without salary

Suspension without salary | I
Dismissal | [
Final written warning & reimbursing the department | I
No disciplinary measures instituted against official due to
lack of evidence

Final written warning with one month'’s suspension
without salary

Total 15 4 0 0 I 6 0 0 26

Table 3.6.7 Skills development for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Pale EEmald

= o

1T ~ o o

Disciplinatracton = 5

o o

o 0

L &
Clerks - 4 0 0 0 7 I 0 0 12
Legislators, senior officials and managers 6 | 0 0 3 2 0 0 12
Technicians and associate professionals 47 19 | 0 62 27 0 0 156
Total 180

Employees with disabilities

3.7 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members

All members of the SMS must conclude and sign performance agreements within specific timeframes. Information
regarding the signing of performance agreements by SMS members, the reasons for not complying within the
prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken is presented here.
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Table 3.7.1 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2019

Salary Level 16 I I ] i

100%
Salary Level 15 1 | | 100%
Salary Level 14 4 2 2 100%
Salary Level 13 18 15 12 80%
Total 24 19 16 84%

Table 3.7.2 Reasons for not having concluded Performance agreements for all SMS members as on
31 May 2019

Reasons
No reason indicated by the three SMS members. Early notification was given to them.

Table 3.7.3 Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded Performance
agreements as on 31 May 2019

Reasons i iy | e
Matter was reported to labour relations and investigations are in process.

Performance Rewards

To encourage good performance, the Department has granted the following performance rewards during the year
under review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, disability, salary bands and critical

occupations (see definition in notes below).
Table 3.8.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability for the period | April 2019 to 31

March202

Beneficiary Profile

Cost

Raceanditzendey NUmberof Cost AVErJvaCosStper
Bencliciavies : (R000) employee
EMpIoyees
African
Female 53,00 209,00 25,40 886,88 16 734,00
Male 29,00 194,00 14,90 718,01 24 759,00
Asian
Female 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Male 1,00 2,00 50,00 18,01 18 015,00
Coloured
Female 29,00 113,00 25,70 599,97 20 689,00
Male 14,00 85,00 16,50 250,41 20 744,00
White
Female 8,00 11,00 72,70 260,69 32 587,00
Male 2,00 7,00 28,60 38,78 19 391,00
" Employees with disability 3,00 17,00 17,60 45,60 15 200,00
Total 139,00 638,00 | 21,80 2 858,36 20 564,00

Table 3.8.2 Performance Rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service
for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Beneficiary Profile

Salary band

Number of
Beneficiatiss

NUmberot
employees

% of total
employitient

Hiotal
(oSt
{R?000)

Cost

Average cost per
employee

Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8) 71,00 423,00 1 028,28 14 483,00
Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12) 45,00 95,00 47,40 1216,30 27 029,00
Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 3,00 15,00 20,00 20,58 6 860,00
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 9,00 43,00 20,90 91,69 10 187,00
Total 128,00 576,00 105,10 | 2 356,84 18 413,00
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Beneficiary Profile

Number of Number

beneficiaries

employees

% of total

of within

occupation

Total
Cost
(R'000)

Cost

BYEragecost
peremployee

Administrative Related - 33,00 104,00 31,70 879,82 26 661,00
All Artisans in the Building Metal Machinery etc. 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Architects Town and Traffic Planners 1,00 1,00 100,00 29,71 29 708,00
Cartographic Surveying and Related Technicians 1,00 2,00 50,00 3791 37 912,00
Cleaners in Offices Workshops Hospitals etc. 3,00 19,00 15,80 20,58 6 860,00
Client Inform Clerks (Switchboard/Reception / 1,00 3,00 33.30 274 2 736,00
Information Clerks)

Communication and Information Related 0,00 1,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Community Development Workers 0,00 11,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Engineering Sciences Related 1,00 1,00 100,00 15,98 15 979,00
Engineers and Related Professionals 0,00 1,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Finance and Economics Related 3,00 4,00 75,00 82,47 27 489,00
Financial and Related Professionals 2,00 2,00 100,00 37,25 18 627,00
Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 14,00 33,00 42,40 211,30 15 093,00
Food Services Aids and Waiters 0,00 3,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
General Legal Administration & Related Professionals 1,00 1,00 100,00 13,67 13 665,00
Human Resourc.:es & Organisational Development & 0,00 1,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Related Professions

Human Resources Clerks 0,00 1,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Human Resources Related 9.00 32,00 28,10 174,18 19 354,00
Information Technology Refated 1,00 2,00 50,00 17,80 17 798,00
Inspectors of Apprentices Works and Vehicles 2,00 13,00 15,40 22,38 11 190,00
Legal Related 1,00 1,00 100,00 15,63 15 631,00
Library Mail and Related Clerks 3,00 8,00 37,50 3422 11 405,00
Logistical Support Personnel 1,00 3,00 33,30 25,18 25 181,00
Material-Recording and Transport Clerks 0,00 3,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Messengers Porters and Deliverers 1,00 7,00 14,30 3,13 3 128,00
Other Administrative & Related Clerks and Organisers 23,00 250,00 9,20 261,39 11 365,00
Other Administrative Policy and Related Officers 17,00 58,00 29,30 254,33 14 960,00
Other Information Technology Personnel 0,00 4,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Other Occupations 0,00 23,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Risk Management and Security Services 1,00 4,00 25,00 51,79 51 785,00
Secretaries & Other Keyboard Operating Clerks 10,00 13,00 76,90 171,94 17 194,00
Security Officers 1,00 2,00 50,00 24,94 24 940,00
Senior Managers 9,00 24,00 37,50 470,04 52 226,00
Trade Quality Controllers 0,00 3,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Total 139,00 638,00 21,80 | 2858,36 20 564,00

Table 3.8.4 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior Management

Salaryband

Service for the

Number of

beneficiarics!

period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
BetchicianProniic ) 2

Tiotal

Employees

% of total
within salary
bands

Cost

Total Cost
(R'00D)

Avcrage
Cost per
employee

| Total cost as a % of
thetotalpersoniicl
expenditure

Band A 7,00 18,00 38,90 374,74 53 534,20 1,60
Band B 2,00 3,00 66,70 95,30 47 648,30 2,00
Band C 0,00 1,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Band D 0,00 1,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
Total 9,00 23,00 39,10 470,04 52 226,30 1,50

Foreign Workers

The tables below summarises the employment of foreign nationals in the department in terms of salary band and

major occupation.

Salary band
" Highly Skilled Supervision {Level 9-12)

| Number

01 April 2018

100

Table 3.9.1 Foreign workers by salary band for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020
| R . e T 31 March 2019 |
“oftotal | Number || %oftotal | Number
100

Change
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Table 3.9.2 Foreign workers by major occupation for the period |1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020
T Ol April 2018 31 March 2019 Change
Number || %oftotal | Number | % of total % Change

Major occupation Number

" Professionals and Managers

Leave Utilisation

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service.
The following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated
cost of the leave is also provided.

Table 3.10.1 Sick leave for the period | January 2019 to 31 December 2019
s Number '
V2 Iayswith of
Medical Employees
certificaton (SN g sick

Yaofitotal
employees
ESing sick

Averaga

days per
employee

Estimated

Salary band Cost (R'000)

Total days

Contract (Levels 13-16) 2 4

Contract (Levels 3-5) 14 92.9 2 0.5 7 12
Contract (Levels 6-8) 32 68.8 7 1.7 5 52
Contract (Levels 9-12) 53 71.7 9 22 6 133
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 2774 82.1 244 58.8 11 4081
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 776 75.6 87 21 9 1968
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 85 85.9 13 3.1 7 46
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 110 82.7 14 34 8 476
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 3755 754 37 8.9 10 334
Total 4227.5 80.2 415 100 10 7133

Table 3.10.2 Disability leave (temporary and permanent) for the period | January 2019 to 31

December 2019
Numberof |
Employces
sz
disdbitity

% of total
employees
using
disability

AVerdre
Klaysiper
Employée

S avs with
Medical
certification

Estimated

Salary band Cost (R'000)

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 455 7 . 65

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 27 100 2 15.4 14 80
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 139 100 3 23.10 46 129
Total 621 100 12 92.3 51.75 963

The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in
the PSCBC in 2000 requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the

time of termination of service.

Table 3.10.3

Salaryband

Toraldays taken

Annual Leave for the period | January 2019 to 31 December 2019
, [ NMumberof Employees ||

using annual leave

employee

Average per

Contract (Levels 13-16) 8
Contract (Levels 3-5) 45 I 4
Contract (Levels 6-8) 150 14 I
Contract (Levels 9-12) 222 13 17
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 8568 22 382
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 2491 26 97
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 276 18 15
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 414 23 18
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1024.92 24 49
Total 13308.92 22 595
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Averace capoed

Table 3.10.4 Capped leave for the period | January 2019 to 31 December 2019

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 0 0 0 25
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 3 2 2 12
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 0 0 0 33
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 17
Total 3 2 2 21
The following table summarise payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.
Table 3.10.5 Leave pay-outs for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
S R'000 cmployees i 00
Capped leave pay-outs on termination of service for 2018/19 40 | 40 000
Total 40 1 40 000

3.11 HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes

Table 3.11.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure
Unitsicatégaries of employees identified £o'be at High risk of contracting HIV & related KGy=stops taken torediiec

diseasesififany) theinisk

None

Table 3.11.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (tick the applicable
boxes and provide the required information)

Question Yes No | Eata_il_s. if_yes

| Has the department designated a member of the SMS to
implement the provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter | Ms. ESD Boboko

of the Public Service Regulations, 20017 If so, provide her/his Senior Manager: HCM
name and position.

Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it designated
specific staff members to promote the health and well-being of

2 your employees? If so, indicate the number of employees who X iEmp:oye:s Rl

are involved in this task and the annual budget that is available nnual budget: R100 000.00
for this purpose.

. . Wellness Management
Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance or Health and Productivity Management

i ?
| ndcae e oy clemeprtsricesof s regramme. " HIVIAIDS Management
4 ) SHERQ Management

Ms. ESD Boboko
Mr. P. Mpontsang
Ms. N. Julingalo
Ms. W. Isaacs

. ) Ms, V Dibeco
Has the department established (a) committee(s) as Mr. M. Batshe

contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public Mr. M. Seleke
4 Service Regulations, 20011 If so, please provide the names of X T a:
. Mr. |. Medise
the members of the committee and the stakeholder(s) that
Ms. S. Mgoma-Makhele

they represent. Ms. M. Joseph-Karsten
Mr. L. Kopa

Mr. R. Vass

Ms. Mjandana

Ms. P. Thebe

Has the department reviewed its employment policies and
practices to ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate
against employees on the basis of their HIV status? If so, list the
employment policies/practices so reviewed.

Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-

6 positive employees or those perceived to be HIV-positive from X HIV Policy
discrimination? If so, list the key elements of these measures.
Does the department encourage its employees to undergo

7 Voluntary Counselling and Testing!? If so, list the results that x
you have you achieved.

The Department presented six opportunities
to employees to be tested.
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DetailSaives

[ Has the department developed measuresfindicators to monitor '
8 & evaluate the impact of its health promotion programme? If x
so, list these measures/indicators.

3.12 Labour Relations

Table 3.12.1

Collective agreements for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
) Collective Agreements . e oM
Total number of Collective agreements 0

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department for the
year under review.

Table 3.12.2

Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period | April 2019 to 31
March 2020

MNumber % of tokal

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings ! |
19%

Final written warning 5
Written warning 6 23%
Verbal Warning 7 27%
Counselling, final written warning with one month’s suspension without salary | 4%

|

|

[

[

1

|

|

6

Counselling, final written warning with three months’ suspension without salary 4%
Demotion, final written warning with three months’ suspension without salary
Suspension without safary

Dismissal

Final written warning & reimbursing the department

No disciplinary measures instituted against official due to lack of evidence
Final written warning with one month’s suspension without salary

Total 2

4%
4°D
4%
4%
4%

Table 3.12.3

Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period | April 2019
to 31 March 2020

___Types of misconduct ___ Number  %oftotal

Prolonged Absenteeism | 3%
Intoxication and assault | 3%
Absenteeism 7 23%
Fraudulent S&T claims 1 3%
Insolence I 3%
Dereliction of duties 7 23%
Insubordination | 3%
AWOL | 3%
Missing EPMDS file 1 3%
Misuse of state vehicle 2 7%
Dereliction of duties and insubordination 2 7%
Intoxication, assault and insolence I 3%
Disclosure of confidential information | 3%
Dereliction of duties and disregard of authority | 3%
Insolence and business on state property | 3%
Petrol fraud | 3%
Total 30

Table 3.12.4 Grievances logged for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Grievances

niGEicea

% of Total

Number of grievances resolved 31 97%
Number of grievances not resolved | 3%
Total number of grievances lodged 32
Table 3.12.5 Disputes logged with Councils for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
= 5 ] Disputes [ 'Niimber | % of Total

Total number of disputes lodged

Number of disutes pheld - | 10%

Number of disputes dismissed 3 30%

Number of pending disputes 6 60%
0
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Table 3.12.6 Strike actions for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
Total number of persons working days lost
Total costs working days lost
Amount recovered as a result of no work no pay (R'000)

o oo

Table 3.12.7 Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020
Number of people suspended
Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days
Average number of days suspended
Cost of suspension (R'000)

(=R =

3.13 Skills development

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development.

Table 3.13.1 Training needs identified for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
|"Number of TFaining neeasidentiiod atstart GR e eporing perod

Other
formsof Total
training

Occupational category Gender :::f’loﬁ:,:l Eearners SiallsSPrastaniinesi:

2017 Ships otheFEHORE COUPSEs

Computer training

Project Management (basic)
Public Management
Conflict Management
Transport & Logistic
management

Supervisory Training
Finance for none financial

2 managers

Financial Management
Records Management
Minute Taking

Disaster Management
Policy Development

Male 6 Financial Management
Computer Training
Legislators, senior officials and Project Management (advanced)
managers Public Management

Report Writing

Female 10 Communication Training
Conflict Management
Presentation & facilitation skill
Communication Skills
Labour Relation

Male 92 Office Management
Computer Training

Project Management (basic)
Disaster Management
Conflict Management
Minute Taking

Female 179 Report Writing Training
Presentation & facilitation
Training

Male I

Clerks

Female

Technicians and associate
professionals

Total 290

Table 3.13.2 Training provided for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
Number of Training provided within the reporting period
employses

Other
{ormsioy Total
training

leatnees SkillsPEozrammes &
other short courses

Occupational category Gender asat § Aptil

2017

Report Writing
Supervisory Training
Male 7 Financial Management
Emerging management development
programme
Clerks Record Management
Labour Relation training
Female 5 Public Management
HC: Management Training
Driving Lessons
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Nimberon| "Training provided within the reporting period
EMplOYEES Other

Occupational category Gender forms of Total

training

asat | April Learncis Skills Programmes &
9017 ships OtREFSHOFECOUSES

Facilitation Management
Advanced CIO Professional
Male 4 ]
Policy development & management
Legislators, senior officials and Project management (advanced)
managers Masters: Business Leadership
Degree: LLB
Evidence based, Marketing and
Implementation
Project management (advanced0
Male 64 Supply chain management training
Technicians and associate Supervisory Training
rofessionals Computer Training
P Public Management
Female 92 Report Writing
Office Administration

Female 8

Total 180

3.14 Injury on Duty

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 3.14.1 Injury on duty for the period |1 April 2019 to 3| March 2020

Nature of injury on'duty Number || % of total

None

3.15 Utilisation of Consultants

The following tables relate information on the utilisation of consultants in the department. In terms of the Public
Service Regulations, “consultant” means a natural or juristic person or a partnership who or which provides in
terms of a specific contract on an ad hoc basis any of the following professional services to a department against
remuneration received from any source:

a) The rendering of expert advice;

b) The drafting of proposals for the execution of specific tasks; and

c) The execution of a specific task, which is of a technical or intellectual nature, but excludes an employee of a
department.

Table 3.15.1 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April
2019 to 31 March 2020

Total number of Duratit;n |
Project title consultants that (work days) Rand

Dworkedonproject

Preparation of Housing Fund Financials £ 15 R40 250 |
Compilation of the Provincial Disaster Management Framework 1 9 months R968 576
TR Total
E Total individual 4 Totalicontract
Total number of projects : duration. 5
consultants (work days) valtiesnRand
Table 3.15.2 Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of
Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period | April 2019 to 31
March 2020

Nimber of
Percentage ConsuHantsirom
management by HDI HIDToroibs that
OTOURS WORIGOIthe
project

Project title Percentase ownershipiby

EDerotps
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Table 3.15.3 Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds for the period | April
2019 to 31 March 2020

N oRlNGmberof
Brojectititle Consuitatits thatworked
oproject

Donor and
contract value in
Rand

Duration
(work days)

Total individual Total duration Total contract
copsuitants {work days) valuchnRand

Totalfitmberof projects

Table 3.15.4 Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds, in terms of Historically
Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period | April 2019 to 31 March 2020
PErcentazs Percentage i
Project title ownership by HDI manasemsntiby H bl
groups groups

Number of consultants from HDI
Proups thatworkion the project

3.16 Severance Packages

Table 3.16.1 Granting of employee initiated severance packages for the period | April 2019 to
31 March 2020

NuUmberor
Salary band applications

Number of Number of
applications Apphications
referred to the sUpportediby

Number of packages
3approvediby

received MPSA MPSA | CEPIHLIHENT
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OPINION
Opinion

I. | have audited the financial statements of the Department of Co-operative Governance, Human
Settlements and Traditional Affairs set out on pages 79 to |55, which comprise the appropriation
statement, statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Department of Co-operative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs as at 3|1 March
2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Modified
Cash Standard (MCS) prescribed by National Treasury and the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. | of 1999) (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of
South Africa, 2019 (Act No. 16 of 2019) (DoRA).

Basis for opinion

3. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor's report.

4. lam independent of the department in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code), parts | and
3 of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) and the ethical requirements
that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfiled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA codes.

5. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.

Emphasis of matters
6. | draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Restatement of corresponding figures

7. As disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2019 were
restated as a result of an error in the financial statements of the department at, and for the year ended,
31 March 2020.

A significant subsequent event that occurred between the date of the financial statements and
the date of the auditor’s report

8. | draw attention to note 28 in the financial statements, which deals with subsequent events and
specifically the possible effects of the future implications of Covid-19 on the department's future
prospects, performance and cash flows. Management have also described how they plan to deal with
these events and circumstances.

Other matter

9. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Unaudited supplementary schedules

10.

The supplementary information set out on pages 156 to 163 does not form part of the financial
statements and is presented as additional information. | have not audited these schedules and,
accordingly, | do not express an opinion onthem.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with MCS prescribed by National Treasury and the requirements of the PFMA and DoRA,
and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the department's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either intends
to liquidate the department or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

13.

14,

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nota guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the
annexure to this auditor's report.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

Introduction and scope

I5.

In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PM) and the
general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report material findings on the
reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes
presented in the annual performance report. | performed procedures to identify findings but not
to gather evidence to express assurance.

My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the
approved performance planning documents of the department. | have not evaluated the
completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included in the planning
documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned
performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included as part
of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

| evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance
with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as
defined in the general notice, for the following selected programmes presented in the annual
performance report of the department for the year ended 31 March2020:

[Pages in the annuak
Programmes performance
report

Programme 2 - Human Settlements 30-33
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18. | performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance
planning documents. | performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and
related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported
performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

Programme 2 - Human Settlements

19. | did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information for the following programme:

. Programme 2 - Human Settlements

Other matters
20. | draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets

21. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 30 to 33 for information on the achievement of
planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the under/overachievement of a number
of targets.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION

Introduction and scope

22. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a responsibility
to report material findings on the compliance of the department with specific matters in key
legislation. | performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express
assurance.

23. The material findings on compliance with specific mattérs in key legislations are asfollows:

Annual financial statement

24. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as required by the section
40(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of disclosure items identified by the auditors in
the submitted financial statement were corrected and the supporting records were provided
subsequently, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified opinion.

Expenditure management

25, Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to
R32 335 000 as disclosed in note 24 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii)
of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 9.1.1. The majority of the irregular expenditure was caused by
the non-compliance to SCM regulations.

26. Payments were not made within 30 days or an agreed period after receipt of an invoice, as required by
Treasury Regulation 8.2.3.

Procurement and contract management

27. Some of the goods and services of a transaction value above R500 000 were procured without inviting
competitive bids and deviations were approved by the accounting officer but it was practical to invite
competitive bids, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1 and | 6A6.4.




28.

29.

30.
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Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that some of the bid documentation for
procurement of commodities designated for local content and production, stipulated the minimum
threshold for local production and content, as required by the 2017 preferential procurement
regulation 8(2). Similar limitation was also reported in the prior year.

Some of the commodities designated for local content and production, were procured from suppliers
who did not meet the prescribed minimum threshold for local production and content, as required by
the 2017 Preferential Procurement Regulation 8(5).

Some of the major infrastructure projects were not reviewed by a gateway review team in accordance
with the Framework for Infrastructure Delivery and Procurement Management.

Consequence management

30

| was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that disciplinary steps were taken against
officials who had incurred unauthorised expenditure, irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful
expenditure as required by section 38(1)(h)(iii} of the PFMA. This was due to the proper and complete
records that were not maintained as evidence to support the investigations into unauthorised
expenditure, irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure.

OTHER INFORMATION

32

33.

34.

35.

The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report. The other information does not include the financial
statements, the auditor's report and those selected programmes presented in the annual performance
report that have been specifically reported in this auditor's report.

My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and
compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and | do not express an audit opinion
or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected
programmes presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to bematerially misstated.

| did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor's report. When | do receive and
read this information, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, | am required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the other information be
corrected. If the other information is not corrected, | may have to retract this auditor's report and re-
issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES

36.

37.

| considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance
information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any
form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control
deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance
with legislation included in thisreport.

Leadership did not exercise oversight responsibility to ensure that effective internal control procedures
are developed and implemented that will enable the department to produce accurate and complete
annual financial statements. The annual financial statement was not sufficiently reviewed against
applicable standards to ensure that errors are detected and corrected before submission for audit. This
resulted in material adjustments in the financial statements.
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38. Management did not adequately review and monitor compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

ﬁa &/,%&r (e rtera /

Kimberley
30 September 2020
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Auditing to build public confidence
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Annexure - Auditor-general's responsibility for the audit

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the procedures performed on reported
performance information for the selected programme and on the department's compliance with respect to
the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2.

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor's report,

| also:

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than forone resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control;

» obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the department's internal control;

» evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the accounting officer;

» conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer's use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the ability of the Department of Co-operative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw
attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material
uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial statements. My
conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause a department to cease operating as a going concern;

« evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance

3.

| communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify
during my audit.

| also confirm to the accounting officer that | have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have
a bearing on my independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Annual Report for 2018/2019 Financial Year
Vote 09: Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs
_Province of Northem Cape

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 3| March 2020

l. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and Annexure | (A-
H) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2, Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note | (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.
3. Detail on payments for financial assets

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial assets to the Annual
Financial Statements.

4, Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):
4.1 Per programme Final Actual Variance Variance as a %
Appropriation  Expenditure R’000 of Final
Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 %

Programme | Administration 161 390 61 378 12 0.0%
Programme 2 Human Settlement 512 540 511824 716 0.1%
Programme 3 Co-Operative Governance 155 606 154 298 | 308 0.3%
Programme 4 Traditional Institutional 23237 21 902 1335 5.7%
Management
Programme | Administration 61 390 161 378 12 0.0%

This Programme has spent R161,378 miillion or 100% of its final appropriation of Ri61,390 million by 31 March 2020. The
programme realised a saving of R12 thousand on its final appropriation. Spending on Compensation of Employees is within the
allocated budget. Monthly commitments such as fleet services, communication, audit fees and operating leases are amongst
the main cost drivers in this programme.

Programme 2 Human Settlement 512 540 511824 716 0.1%

Programme 2 has spent R511,824 million or 99,9% of its final appropriation of R512,540 million by 31 March 2020. The
Programme spend only 50.3% of its Goods and Services allocation. Compensation of Employees was overspent by 5.7%. A
R6,797 million in respect of the Human Settlement Development Grant was approved as a roll over to the 2019/2020 financial
year. The Housing Development Grant was reduced with an amount of R26 million and redirected to other Provinces. The
programme spent 100% of its conditional grant and no roll over will be requested for the 2020/2021 financial year.

Programme 3 Co-Operative 154 746 154298 448 0.3%
Governance

Programme 3 has spent R154,289 million or 99,7% of its final appropriation of R154,746 miillion by the 31 March 2020. The
programme received an additional R9 million in the 2019/2020 adjustment budget for secondments and interventions in
municipalities. The programme overspent its Compensation of Employees by 3% and Goods and Services was underspend by
374%

Programme 4 Traditional 23 237 21 902 1 335 5.7%
Institutional Management

Programme 4 has spent R2 1,902 million or 94,3% of its final appropriation of R23,237 million by the 31 March 2020. The 5,7%
underspending is due to a saving of 49.3% on Goods and Services and 1.1% on Compensation of Employees.




Annual Report for 20168/2019 Financial Year
Vote 09: Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs
__Province of Northern Cape

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2020

4.2 Per economic classification Final Actual Variance Variance as a %
Appropriation  Expenditure of Final
Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R'000 %
Current payments
Compensation of employees 277211 281 247 (4 036) (1.5%)
Goods and services 79117 73774 5343 6.8%

Interest and rent on land

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities 2] 231 2] 231 - 0.0%
Departmental agencies and accounts

Higher education institutions

Public corporations and private

enterprises

Foreign governments and international

organisations

Non-profit institutions 913 913 - 0%
Households 464 336 464 342 6) 0%

Payments for capital assets

Buildings and other fixed structures 123 (123) -
Machinery and equipment 9 365 7771 | 594 17.0%
Heritage assets

Specialised military assets

Biological assets

Land and subsoil assets

Intangible assets 600 0 600 100%

Payments for financial assets

The departments total expenditure amounts to R849,402 million or 99,6% of the final appropriation of R852,773 million
as at 31 March 2020. The overall variance is R3,37| million or 0,4% is as a result of cost containment measures
implemented and adhered to especially on Goods and Services. Compensation of Employees is overspend by 1,5% of
the final appropriation. This is due to secondments to municipalities and contract appointments. R21,231 million or
100% of transfers to municipalities were done at year-end. A once-off transfer of R913 thousand to the Traditional
House for Traditional leaders was incurred. Only 79.2% or R7,894 million was spent on a final appropriation of R9,665
million for capital assets. The department did not procure software during the financial year.

4.3Per conditional grant Final Actual Variance Variance as a
Appropriation  Expenditure % of Final
Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Human Settlements Development Grant 451 059 451 059 0%
Title Deeds Restoration Grant 10790 10790 0%
Expanded Public Works Programme 2 046 2046 0%

Integrated Grant for Provinces

The adjusted appropriation for conditional grants for 2019/2020 is R 463,895 million. 100% of the conditional grants was
spent at year-end and no roll over will be requested.




Annual Report for 2016/2019 Financial Year
Vote 09: Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Seftlements and Tradifional Affairs
Province of Northemn Cape

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the year ended 3| March 2020
Note 2019/20 2018/19

R'000 R'000

REVENUE

|~

Annual appropriation 852 773 881 281
Statutory appropriation - -
Departmental revenue
NRF Receipts - -
Aid assistance - -

i~

TOTAL REVENUE 852773 881 281

EXPENDITURE

Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 281 247 270 352
Goods and services 73774 59 590
Interest and rent on land - -
Aid assistance

L

o

Total current expenditure 355 021 329 942

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies
Aid assistance

486 486 528 787

o fos

Total transfers and subsidies 486 486 528 787

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets
Intangible assets

7895 3654
- | 039

NN

Total expenditure for capital assets 7 895 4693

lco
1
'

Unauthorised expenditure approved without funding

Payments for financial assets - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 849 402 863 422

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 3371 17 859

Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Voted funds 3371 17 859
Annual appropriation - -
Conditional grants - -

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts

Aid assistance - -

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 3 371 17 859

w S
1
[}




Annual Report for 2018/2019 Financial Year
Vote 09: Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2020

Note 2019/20 2018/19
R'000 R'000
ASSETS
Current assets 133 656 133873
Unauthorised expenditure 8 133279 133279
Cash and cash equivalents 2 5 5
Other financial assets - -
Prepayments and advances 10 5 5
Receivables pi 367 584
Loans - -
Aid assistance prepayments 3 - -
Aid assistance receivable 3 - -
Non-current assets 773 460
Investments - -
Receivables i 773 460
Loans - -
Other financial assets - -
TOTAL ASSETS 134 429 134 333
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 134 321 134 225
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 12 3182 21 862
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to 13 40 190
the Revenue Fund
Bank overdraft 14 128 344 111085
Payables 15 2729 1 062
Aid assistance repayable 3 - -
Aid assistance unutilised 3 26 26
Non-current liabilities
Payables 16 6 9
TOTAL LIABILITIES 134 327 134 234
NET ASSETS 102 99
Represented by:
Capitalisation reserve - R
Recoverable revenue 102 99

Retained funds - -
Revaluation reserves - -

TOTAL 102 99




Annual Report for 2018/2019 Financial Year
Vote 09: Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Setflements and Traditional Affairs

. Province of Northern Cape

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 2019/20 2018/19
R'000 R'000

Capitalisation Reserves - -
Opening balance - -
Transfers: - -

Movement in Equity - -
Movement in Operational Funds - -
Other movements - -
Closing balance - -

Recoverable revenue
Opening balance 99 100
Transfers: 3 )
Irrecoverable amounts written off 83 - -
Debts revised - -
Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts) - U]
Debts raised 3 -
Closing balance 102 99

Retained funds - -
Opening balance - -
Transfer from voted funds to be surrendered - -
(Parliament/Legislatures ONLY)

Utilised during the year - -
Other transfers - -
Closing balance - -

Revaluation Reserve - -
Opening balance - -
Revaluation adjustment (Housing departments) - -
Transfers - -
Other - -
Closing balance - -

TOTAL 102 99




Annual Report for 2016/2019 Financial Year
Vote 09: Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs
Bravinee of Northor Cage

T ——————— — — - = —_—— —

for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note 2019/20 2018/19
R'000 R’000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 853 286 881 787
Annual appropriated funds received 11 852773 881 281
Statutory appropriated funds received - -
Departmental revenue received 2 512 506
Interest received 23 I -
NRF Receipts - -
Aid assistance received 3 - -
Net (increase)/decrease in working capital | 884 (4 002)
Surrendered to Revenue Fund (22714) (36 274)
Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor - -
Current payments (355 021) (326 070)
Interest paid - -
Payments for financial assets - -
Transfers and subsidies paid (486 486) (528 787)
Net cash flow available from operating activities 17 (9 051) (13 346)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Distribution/dividend received - -
Payments for capital assets z (7 895) (4 693)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - -
(Increase)/decrease in loans - -
(Increase)/decrease in investments - -
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets - -
(Increase)/decrease in non-current receivables 1 (313) -
Net cash flows from investing activities (8 208) (4 693)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(decrease) in net assets 3 )
Increase/(decrease) in non-current payables (3) (36)
Net cash flows from financing activities - (37)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (17 259) (18 076)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (111 080) (93 004)

Unrealised gains and losses within cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period i3 (128 339) (111 080)




Annual Report for 2016/2019 Financial Year

Vote 09: Department of Cooperative Goverance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs
_____Province of Northem Cape

IES
for the year ended 31 March 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied
consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that the financial statements
present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information.

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated. Management has used assessments
and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements. These are based on the best information available at the
time of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial
statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act | of
1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual
Division of Revenue Act.

I Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.
2 Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
3 Presentation currency

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the
functional currency of the department.

4 Rounding
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand

(R'000).

5 Foreign currency translation
Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands
using the spot exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

6 Comparative information

6.1 Prior period comparative information

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial
statements. Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been
reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is presented is consistent with the
format of the current year’s financial statements.

6.2 | Current year comparison with budget
A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme and
economic classification is included in the appropriation statement.

7 Revenue

7.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the
revenue fund (i.e. statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the
appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process
are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the adjustments become
effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the
reporting date is recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.

7.2 Departmental revenue

Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is
subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise,

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in the
statement of financial position.
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7.3 Accrued departmental revenue
Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the
financial statements when:
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
department; and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from collecting
agents.
Write-offs are made according to the department’s debt write-off policy
Expenditure
Compensation of employees
.1 | Salaries and wages
Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
8.1.2 | Social contributions
Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in the
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as transfers to
households in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
8.2 Other expenditure
Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets) is
recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. The expense is classified as a
capital expense if the total consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold.
8.3 Accruals and payables not recognised
Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost at the
reporting date.
8.4 Leases
8.4.1 | Operating leases
Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in the
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.
8.4.2 | Finance leases
Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not
apportioned between the capital and interest portions.
Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower of:
cost, being the fair value of the asset; or
the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire ownership at the
end of the lease term, excluding interest.
Aid Assistance
.1 Aid assistance received
Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received. In-
kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of receipt and is
measured at fair value.
Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance that are
required to be refunded to the donor are recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position.
9.2 Aid assistance paid
Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. Aid
assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable in the statement of
financial position.
10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.
Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a current liability.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits
held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

0| O




Annual Report for 2018/2019 Financial Year
Vote 09: Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs
_ Province of Northem Cape

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2020

Prepayments and advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the department
receives or disburses the cash.

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.

12 Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued interest,
where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off. Write-offs are made according to the
department’s write-off policy.

13 Investments
Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

14 Financial assets

14.1 | Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)
A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset.
At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts already settled or
written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at cost plus accrued interest,
where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.

14.2 | Impairment of financial assets
Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in the
recorded carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits
expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

15 Payables
Payables recognised in the statement of financial position are recognised at cost.

16 Capital Assets

16.1 | Immovable capital assets
Immovable assets reflected in the asset register of the department are recorded in the notes to the financial
statements at cost or fair value where the cost cannot be determined reliably. Immovable assets acquired in
a non-exchange transaction are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition. Immovable assets are
subsequently carried in the asset register at cost and are not currently subject to depreciation or
impairment.
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use.
Additional information on immovable assets not reflected in the assets register is provided in the notes to
financial statements.

16.2 | Movable capital assets
Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Movable capital
assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital assets are
measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at R1I.
All assets acquired prior to | April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at RI.
Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Biological assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature
forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use.

16.3 | Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Intangible assets
acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the
department commences the development phase of the project.

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets are measured
at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured at R1I.

All assets acquired prior to | April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use.
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16.4 | Project Costs: Work-in-progress
Expenditure of a capital nature is initially recognised in the statement of financial performance at cost when
paid.
Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts recognised and accumulated in
work-in-progress until the underlying asset is ready for use. Once ready for use, the total accumulated
payments are recorded in an asset register. Subsequent payments to complete the project are added to the
capital asset in the asset register.
Where the department is not the custodian of the completed project asset, the asset is transferred to the
custodian subsequent to completion.
17 Provisions and Contingents
17.1 | Provisions
Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or
constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The provision is measured as the best
estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.
17.2 | Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible
obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department or when
there is a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
17.3 | Contingent assets
Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset arises from
past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not within the control of the department.
17.4 | Capital commitments
Capital commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements.
18 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as the
expenditure is either:
approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are received; or
approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against the
appropriation in the statement of financial performance; or
transferred to receivables for recovery.
Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.
19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The
amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it is resolved
or transferred to receivables or written off.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be
recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.
20 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The amount
recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine,
in which case reasons therefor are provided in the note.
Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority,
transferred to receivables for recovery, not condoned and removed or written-off.
Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are
de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.
21 Changes in accounting estimates and errors
Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.
Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance
with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects
or the cumulative effect of the error. In such cases the department shall restate the opening balances of
assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.
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22 Events after the reporting date
The department did procure goods and services after the announcement of the President that all public
sector and business must close immediately to ensure the impact of COVID19 is not that severe to the
citizens of South Africa.
The National Treasury instruction note N0.8 of 2019/20 on Emergency Procurement were used as a
guideline to do procurement for most critical goods and services for both the departmental staff and some
municipalities. The main reason for using the guidelines on procurement, was to ensure no irregular
expenditure will be incurred or any goods or services provided will be based on exorbitant prices or
inflated pricing on items. The department is mainly funded from conditional grant, which constitutes 47 per
cent of the total budget, while equitable share represents 53 per of the budget. The reductions against both
the equitable share and the conditional grants allocations of the department and subsequent reallocation to
fund Covid-19 response plan do have an impact on the state of financial affairs of the department after
reporting date as at end of March 2020.
The Department did not embark on new programmes but rather focused on programmes that were already
in the pipeline. This made it easier to engage the local authority on the interventions and projects already in
their IDP.
The department provided water tanks, sanitisers and temporary sanitation in Phokwane Nkandla informal
settlement, which at the time were identified as the EPIC Centre. Sol Plaatje Lerato Park was serviced with
standpipes. Both interventions improved the hygiene and convenient access to water and sanitation to the
settlements
23 Principal-Agent arrangements
The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for construction of houses. In terms of the
arrangement the department is the principal and is responsible for building of houses for beneficiaries. All
related revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities have been recognised or recorded in terms of the
relevant policies listed herein. Additional disclosures have been provided in the notes to the financial
statements where appropriate.
24 Departures from the MCS requirements
Management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary
information; that the department complied with the Standards.
25 Capitalisation reserve
The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting
period but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current
reporting period. Amounts are recognised in the capitalisation reserves when identified in the current
period and are transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when the underlying asset is disposed
and the related funds are received.
26 Recoverable revenue
Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes
recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts are either transferred to the
National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are transferred to the statement of financial
performance when written-off.
27 Related party transactions
Related party transactions within the Minister/MEC’s portfolio are recorded in the notes to the financial
statements when the transaction is not at arm’s length.
The number of individuals and the full compensation of key management personnel is recorded in the notes
to the financial statements.
28 Inventories (Effective from date determined in a Treasury Instruction)
At the date of acquisition, inventories are recognised at cost in the statement of financial performance.
Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the inventories are measured at fair
value as at the date of acquisition.
Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or where intended for
distribution (or consumed in the production of goods for distribution) at no or a nominal charge, the lower
of cost and current replacement value.
The cost of inventories is assigned by using the weighted average cost basis.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2020

29 Public-Private Partnerships

Public Private Partnerships are accounted for based on the nature and or the substance of the partnership.
The transaction is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policies.

A summary of the significant terms of the PPP agreement, the parties to the agreement, and the date of
commencement thereof together with the description and nature of the concession fees received, the
unitary fees paid, rights and obligations of the department are recorded in the notes to the financial
statements.

30 Employee benefits
The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not recognised and
provisions) is disclosed in the Employee benefits note.

31 Transfers of functions

Transfers of functions are accounted for by the acquirer by recognising or recording assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at their carrying amounts at the date of transfer.

Transfers of functions are accounted for by the transferor by derecognising or removing assets and liabilities
at their carrying amounts at the date of transfer.

32 Mergers

Mergers are accounted for by the combined department by recognising or recording assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at their carrying amounts at the date of the merger.

Mergers are accounted for by the combining departments by derecognising or removing assets and liabilities
at their carrying amounts at the date of the merger.
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Annual Report for 2018/2019 Financial Year
Vote 09: Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Setflements and Traditional Affairs
_Province of Northern Cape

I. Report of the auditor-general to Northern Cape Provincial
Legislature: Northern Cape Housing Development Fund

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

I | have audited the financial statements of the Northern Cape Housing Development Fund set out on pages
170 to 178, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly; in all material respects, the financial position of the
Northern Cape Housing Development Fund as at 31 March 2020 and financial performance for the year
then ended in accordance with Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP) and the
requirements of the Housing Fund Act of South Africa (Act No. 107 of 1997).

Context for the opinion

3. | conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor-general's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of my report.

4. I am independent of the entity in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of ethics for professional accountants and parts | and 3 of the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA codes) as well as the ethical requirements that are relevant to
my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA codes.

5. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern
6. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

7. | draw attention to note 12 to the financial statement which indicates that there has been a national decision
de-establish the Housing Fund in all provinces. As stated in note 12, these events or conditions indicate
that material uncertainty exist that may cast significant doubt on the ability for Housing Fund to continue
as a going concern. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of accounting authority for the financial statements

8. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Standard of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standard of GRAP) and for such
internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

9. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the Northern
Cape Housing Development Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance
structure either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.
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Auditor-general's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

1. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the
annexure to the auditor's report.

Performance information reporting

12.  As the entity was dormant for the year under review, no work was performed on the audit of performance
information.

Audit of compliance with legislation

13.  As the entity was dormant for the year under review, no work was performed on the audit of compliance
with legislation.

Other information

14. The Northern Cape Housing Development Fund accounting authority is responsible for the other
information. The other information does not include the financial statements and the auditor's report
thereon.

I5. My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

16.  In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or my knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Internal control deficiencies

17. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements; however, my objective was
not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are limited to the significant
internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for qualified opinion, included in this report.

8. Leadership did not exercise oversight responsibility to ensure that effective internal control procedures are

developed and implemented that will enable the entity to produce accurate and complete annual financial
statements reporting. This resulted in material adjustments in the financial statements.

AWQ@ (enmeved

KIMBERLEY
30 September 2020

AUDITOR-GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

Auditing to build public confidence
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I. Aspart of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout my audit of the financial statements.

Financial statements
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in the auditor's report, | also:

+ identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

»  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control

» evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by those responsible for the financial statements

e conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Northern Cape Development Fund ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial
statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of the auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease operating as a going concern

= evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and determine whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation

Communication with those charged with governance

3. | communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my
audit.

4. | also confirm to the accounting authority that | have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing
on my independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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2. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NORTHERN CAPE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FUND
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities and Approval

The accounting officer is required by the Public Finance Management Act to maintain adequate accounting records and
is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included
in this report. It is responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements satisfy the financial reporting standards
as to form and content and present fairly the statement of financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the
entity, and explain the transactions and financial position of the operations of the entity at the end of the financial year.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board. The
annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied throughout the entity and
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control
established by the entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the
accounting officer to meet these responsibilities, the accounting officer sets standards for internal control aimed at
reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities
within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the entity and all employees are required to maintain
the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity's operations are conducted in a manner that in all reasonable
circumstances are above reproach.

The focus of risk management in the fund is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk
across the entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined
procedures and constraints.

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system
of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the annual financial statements. Based on forecasts and available
cash resources for the year up to 31 March 2021, the accounting officer has no reason to believe that the entity will not
be a going concern in the foreseeable future. The annual financial statements support the viability of the entity.

The annual financial statements have been audited by the independent external auditing firm, Auditor General of South
Africa, who have been given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all meetings
of the accounting officer and committees. The accounting officer believes that all representations made to the independent
external auditors during the audit were valid and appropriate. The external auditor's audit report is presented on pages
170 to 178.

The annual finaacialstatements as set out on pages 170 to 178 were approved by the accounting officer on 31 July 2020

and were si
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Accounting Officer’s Report
The accounting officer presents his report for the year ended 31 March 2020.

1. Review of activities
The Northern Cape Housing Development Fund is dormant and received no further funding during the year. The
income and expenditure that is reflected in the statement Financial Performance is other income relating to
services in kind and expenditure relating to audit and consulting fees and municipal rates and taxes.

The Housing Fund was setup as a conduit for national housing funding and to hold all housing assets in the province.
With the introduction of the housing conditional grant, the Department received funding appropriated into the
budget of the Department through the budget processes. This meant there was no longer a need for the existence
of a Housing Fund to receive the funding for housing.

The operating results and statement of financial position of the fund are fully set out in the attached financial
statements and do not in my opinion require further comment.

The fund did not trade during the year under review.

2 Overview of operations during the year
The Northern Cape Housing Development Fund is dormant and received no further funding during the year. The
income and expenditure that is reflected in the statement Financial Performance is other income relating to
services in kind and expenditure relating to audit and consulting fees and municipal rates and taxes.

During the 2017 financial year the housing fund undertook an exercise of devolving all its properties to the
various local authorities in the Northern Cape Province, the debtors system was finalised and closed off during
the end of the 2012 financial year as a result no transactions took place on the debtor system during the 2020
financial year.

As at year end of financial year the housing fund did not have any sales, rental and loan debtors.

As at year end the fund had properties amounting to R11.1 million which are in the process of being devolved to
the local municipalities in the Northern Cape Province.

We expect to devolve all properties during the 2020/21 financial year.
3. Events after the reporting date
All events subsequent to the date of the annual financial statements and for which the applicable financial

reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

The accounting officer is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year to
the date of this report that could have a material effect on the financial position of the fund.

4. Accounting Officer’s interest in contracts
To my knowledge, | had no interest in any contracts entered into during the year under review.

5. Accounting Officer
The Accounting Officer of the fund during the year and up to the date of this report is as follows:

Mr. B. S. Lenkoe
Northern Cape Department COGHSTA
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S E— s Province of Northem Cape
NORTHERN CAPE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FUND
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2020 2019
Current Assets
Inventories : Properties held for devolution 5 11,152,900 11,152,900
Total Current Assets 11,152,900 11,152,900
TOTAL ASSETS 11,152,900 11,152,900
Net assets and liabilities
Net Assets
Retained Income 10,929,401 10,986,210
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables from non-exchange transactions -] 223,499 166,690
Total liabilities 223,499 166,690
Total Net Assets And Liabilities I1,152,900 11,152,900
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2019 2018

8
Revenue
Services in kind 339,097 247,245
Total Revenue 339,097 247,245
Total Expenditure (395,906) (289,901)
Audit Fees 9 (298,847) (196,745)
Consulting Fees 10 (40,250) (50,500)
Rates and Taxes 11 (56, 809) (42,656)

(Deficit)/Surplus for the period (56,809) (42,656)
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Figures in Rand Retained Total

Income
Balance as at 3|1 March 2018 as previously reported 10,607,345 10,607,345
Increase (decrease) due to corrections of prior period 421,521 421,521
Balance as at | April 2018 as restated 11,028,866 11,028,866
Changes in net assets
Deficit for the year (42,656) (42,656)
Deficit for the year (42,656) (42,656)
Balance as at 3! March 2019 as restated 10,986,210 10,986,210
Balance at | April 2019 as previously reported 10,607,345 10,607,345
Increase (decrease) due to corrections of prior period 378,865 378,865
Balance as at | April 2019 as restated 10,986,210 10,986,210
Changes in net assets
Deficit for the year (56,809) (56,809)
Deficit for the year (56,809) (56,809)

Balance as at 31 March 2020 as restated 10,929,401 10,929,401
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Accounting Policies

l. General Information
The Housing Fund was setup as a conduit for national housing funding and to hold all housing assets in the province.
With the introduction of the housing conditional grant, the Department received funding appropriated into the
budget of the Department through the budget processes. This meant there was no longer a need for the
existence of a Housing Fund to receive the funding for housing.

There has been a national decision to de-establish the Housing Fund in all Provinces; however the legislative
changes to the National Housing Act have not yet been enacted to allow for the de-establishment the Northern
Cape Housing Development Fund.

No Cash Flow statement is prepared for the housing fund as the fund does not operate a bank account, payments
and receipts of cash are being paid and received by the Northern Cape Department of Co-operative
Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Northern Cape Housing Development Fund have been prepared in accordance
with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice and the Public Finance Management Act. The
financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of land and buildings, available-for-sale financial assets, and financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss. They are presented
in South African Rand.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in note 3.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Inventories

Definition

Inventories are assets:

e in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process;

in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering of services;
held for sale or distribution in the ordinary course of operations; or

in the process of production for sale or distribution.

Recognition

Inventories are recognised as an asset when

s itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity;
and

o the cost of the inventories can be measured reliably.

Measurement
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange

transaction, then their costs are their fair value at the date of the acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for
¢ distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
e consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

2.2 Revenue from exchange transactions
2.3 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an
entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions consists primarily of grants from National - and Provincial
Government, Property rates and Fines revenue.

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives
and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction,
an entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange,
or gives value to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic
benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset
may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned
to the transferor if not deployed as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use
of a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity.

Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except
to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a
non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised
and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

When considering the probability of the future economic benefits that will flow to the entity, consideration is
given to the requirements as outlined in GRAP I.

Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised

by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue
equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also
required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase
in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event
occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.
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Gifts and donations, including goods in-kind

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it is probable that the
future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured
reliably.

Services in-kind

Services in-kind that are significant to the operations and/or service delivery objectives are recognised as assets
and related revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the
entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably. If the services in-kind are not significant to the
entity’s operations and/or service delivery objectives and/or do not satisfy the criteria for recognition, the entity
discloses the nature and type of services in-kind received during the reporting period.

Conditional grants and receipts

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that
the entity has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the
extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise
significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or
joint control. As a minimum, the following are regarded as related parties of the reporting entity:
o A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person:
~ has control or joint control of the reporting entity;
~ has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
~ is a member of the management of the entity or its controlling entity.
e An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply:
~ The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same economic entity (which means that each
controlling entity, controlled entity and fellow controlled entity is related to the others);
~ One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is a member);
~ Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
~ One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
~ The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity
or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the reporting entity;
~ The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified as a related party;
~ A person identified as having control or joint control over the reporting entity has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the management of the entity (or its controlling entity).
~ The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the controlling entity of the reporting entity;

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a
related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The fund makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.
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Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock

An allowance is made for slowing, damaged and obsolete inventory to write this inventory down of stock to the
lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have made estimates of the selling price, costs of completion
as well as costs to make the sale, exchange or distribution. The write down is included in the statement of financial
performance.

Estimation of the amount of inventory to be written off due to obsolescence

Add details as required (refer to GRAP 12 on Inventories), e.g. An allowance is made for slow moving, damaged
an obsolete inventory to write this inventory down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management
have made estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is
included in the statement of financial performance.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The fund has not applied the following new, revised or amended pronouncements that have been approved by the
ASB as they are not yet effective for the annual financial year beginning 1 April 2019. The accounting officer
anticipates that the new standards, amendments and interpretations will be adopted in the fund's financial
statements when they become effective. The fund has assessed, where practicable, the potential impact of all
these new standards, amendments and interpretations that will be effective in future periods.

Adopted
Standard in the Future |, Expected .
Standard effective current | adopted implementation
date (where
date year (Y/N) applicable)
(Y/N)
GRAP 20 - Related Party Disclosures Ol Aprit2020 | N N No Impact
GRAP 32 - Service Concession Ol April 2020 | N N No Impact
Arrangements: Grantor
GRAP 34 - Separate Financial Statements Ol April 2020 | N N No Impact
GRAP 35 - Consolidated Financial Statements | Ol April 2020 | N N No Impact
GRAP 36 - Investments in Associates and Ol April 2020 | N N No Impact
Joint Ventures
GRAP 37 - Joint Arrangements Ol April 2020 | N N No Impact
GRAP 38 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Ol April 2020 | N N No Impact
Entities
GRAP 108 - Statutory Receivables Ol April 2020 | N N No Impact
GRAP 109 - Accounting by Principals and 01 April 2020 | N N No Impact
Agents
GRAP 110 - Living and Non-living Resources | 01 April 2020 | N N No Impact
Inventories: Properties held for devolution
Figures in Rand 2020 2019 Restated
Inventories comprise:
Properties held for devolution 11,152,900 11,152,900
11,152,900 11,152,900

A register containing information on the properties owned by the Fund is available for inspection at the funds

registered address.

The fund is currently in the process of transferring the above mentioned properties to the various local authorities
through a devolution process.
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Figures in Rand 2020 2019 Restated
Payables from non-exchange transactions comprise:

Municipal Rates and transfer costs 223,499 166,690
Total payables from non-exchange transactions 223,499 166,690

Related Parties
The housing fund's operations and management decisions are controlled by the Northern Cape Department of

Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs.

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 Restated
Related Party Transactions
NC COGHSTA - Services in kind 339,097 247,245
339,097 247,245

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 Restated
Revenue from non-exchange transactions comprise:
NC COGHSTA - Services in kind 339,097 247,245

The Department which is a related party paid rates and taxes and property other expenses on behalf of the fund,
this payment is treated as income in the accounting records of the housing fund.

Audit Fees

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 Restated

Audit comprises:
Audit fees 298,847 196,745

Consulting Fees

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 Restated
Other expenses comprise:
Consulting fees - preparation of AFS 40,250 50,500

Rates and Taxes

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 Restated
Rates and Taxes on properties held for devolution

Rates and taxes 56,809 42,656
Total rates and taxes 56,809 42,656

Going Concern

There has been a national decision to de-establish the Housing Fund in all provinces; however, the legislative
changes to the National Housing Act, 1997 (Act No 107 of 1997) have not yet been enacted to allow for the
de-establishment of the Northern Cape Housing Fund, the fund will probably transfer all remaining properties
to local authorities during the calendar year 2021.
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Financial risk factors

The fund’s financial instruments consist mainly of trade and other receivables and trade and other payables. All
financial instruments are measured and recognised at fair value. Trade receivables and payables approximate their
fair value due to the short term nature of these instruments. The fair values together with the carrying amounts
have been determined by using available market information and are presented in the Statement of Financial
Position as detailed below:

Figures in Rand 2020 2019 Restated
Financial liabilities - held at amortised cost:
Trade and other payables 186,797 136,554
186,797 136,554

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of the following financial instruments approximate their fair value due to the fact that these

instruments are predominantly short term nature.

e Trade and Other payables

are subject to normal Trade credit terms and short payment cycles. The cost of Other payables approximates its
fair value.

No financial instrument is carried at an amount in excess of its fair value.

13.2.1 Risk Management

13.2.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the fund will be unable to meets its obligations as they become due. The fund’s
approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that sufficient liquidity is available to meet its liabilities when due
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the fund’s
reputation.

The fund ensures it has sufficient access to facilities to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing
of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters.

The fund manages liquidity risk through the compilation and monitoring of cash flow forecasts as well as ensuring
that there are adequate support facilities from the department.

Maturity Period 0 - 12 Months l -5 Years > 5 Years
Trade and other payables 186,797 - -

13.2.3 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices (interest rate) will affect the fund’s income or the value of its
holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The fund does not receive any grant funding,
expenditure incurred i.e. rates and taxes, audit and consulting fees, by the fund is paid by COGHSTA and this is
treated as income in the accounting records of the housing fund. The payment made by COGHSTA is treated as
services in kind and there is no market related risks associated with it.

Interest rate risk

The fund does not have interest-bearing assets, and therefore the fund’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The fund only received grant funding; it does not
have any call deposits; notice deposits; finance lease obligations; long term loans and a bank overdraft. There were

no interest rate related risks.

Foreign exchange risk management
The fund is not exposed to any foreign exchange risk as it does not enter into any foreign exchange contracts.
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i4.  Prior period error
During the financial year 2 properties were identified belonging to the fund which were not previously recorded

in the financial statements ,The adjustments have been made retrospectively in the financial statements in
accordance with GRAP 3.

The impact is as follows:

Statement of Financial Position

Increase in inventories - properties held for devolution 409,000
Increase in accounts payable - rates and taxes (30,135)
378,865

Increase in net assets
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